

Board of

Supervisors

Board of Supervisors

Public Safety Cluster Agenda Review Meeting

DATE: October 22, 2025 **TIME:** 9:30 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

MEETING CHAIR: Sandra Croxton, 5th Supervisorial District

CEO MEETING FACILITATOR: Dardy Chen

THIS MEETING IS HELD UNDER THE GUIDELINES OF BOARD POLICY 3.055.

To participate in the meeting in-person, the meeting location is: Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 500 West Temple Street Los Angeles, California 90012 Room 374-A

To participate in the meeting virtually, please call teleconference number 1 (323) 776-6996 and enter the following 169948309# or Click here to join the meeting

For Spanish Interpretation, the Public should send emails within 48 hours in advance of the meeting to: ClusterAccommodationRequest@bos.lacounty.gov

Members of the Public may address the Public Safety Cluster on any agenda item during General Public Comment. The meeting chair will determine the amount of time allowed for each item.

THIS TELECONFERENCE WILL BE MUTED FOR ALL CALLERS. PLEASE DIAL *6

TO UNMUTE YOUR PHONE WHEN IT IS YOUR TIME TO SPEAK.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. **INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S):** [Any Informational Item is subject to discussion and/or presentation at the request of two or more Board offices with advance notification]:

A. BOARD LETTER:

Approve Model Master Agreement for Polygraph Examination Services Speaker(s): Laura Avelar and Cynthia Lopez (SHERIFF'S)

B. BOARD LETTER:

Authorize the Chief Probation Officer and District Attorney to Enter Into a Subaward Services Agreement with the City of Los Angeles for Reimbursement for Community Law Enforcement and Recovery Program Participation

Speaker(s): Stacey Lopez-Maddox, Gina Byrnes, and Michael Wade (PROBATION)

3. BOARD MOTION ITEM(S):

SD3

• Supporting Youth-Centered Programming and Advocacy on the Care First Community Investment Committee

4. PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION ITEM(S):

- A. NONE
- 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
- 6. ADJOURNMENT

CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S):

CS-1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION

(Subdivision d(1) of Government Code Section 54956.9)

Latosha Walker v. County of Los Angeles

Los Angeles Superior Court Case No.: 21STCV08300

Department(s): Sheriff's

CS-2 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION

(Subdivision (a) of Government Code Section 54956.9)

Emmett Brock v. County of Los Angeles, et al.

United States District Court Case No.: 2:22-CV-07764

Department(s): Sheriff's

CS-3 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION

(Paragraph (a) of Government Code section 54956.9)

Jane BP-B Doe, et al. v Doe 1 (County of Los Angeles), et al.

Los Angeles Superior Court Case No. 22STCV25961 and approximately 414 AB 218 Matters Against the County of Los Angeles

Department(s): Various

7. UPCOMING ITEM(S) FOR OCTOBER 29, 2025:

A. BOARD LETTER:

Request to Extend Funding Agreement for Administration and Monitoring Services in Support of the Court-Referred Community Service Program Speaker(s): Mark Delgado (CCJCC) and Barbara Boulet (LACDA)

B. **BOARD LETTER:**

Ten-Year Lease Amendment – Sheriff's Department 9100 South Sepulveda Boulevard, Los Angeles Speaker(s): Alexandra Nguyen-Rivera (CEO)

IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO EMAIL A COMMENT ON AN ITEM ON THE PUBLIC SAFETY CLUSTER AGENDA, PLEASE USE THE FOLLOWING EMAIL AND INCLUDE THE AGENDA NUMBER YOU ARE COMMENTING ON:

PUBLIC_SAFETY_COMMENTS@CEO.LACOUNTY.GOV

BOARD LETTER/MEMO CLUSTER FACT SHEET

CLUSTER AGENDA REVIEW DATE	10/22/2025
BOARD MEETING DATE	11/12/2025
SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT AFFECTED	⊠ All ☐ 1 st ☐ 2 nd ☐ 3 rd ☐ 4 th ☐ 5 th
DEPARTMENT(S)	Sheriff's Department
SUBJECT	Board approval of Model Master Agreement for Polygraph Examination Services (Services).
PROGRAM	Establish Master Agreements with qualified vendors to provide the Department's Personnel Administration Bureau with as-needed Services.
AUTHORIZES DELEGATED AUTHORITY TO DEPT	⊠ Yes □ No
SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT	☐ Yes ☐ No
	If Yes, please explain why: N/A
SB 1439 SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION FORM REVIEW COMPLETED BY EXEC OFFICE	☐ Yes ☐ No – Not Applicable
DEADLINES/ TIME CONSTRAINTS	
COST & FUNDING	Total cost: Funding source: General Fund
	TERMS (if applicable): Model Master Agreement has a term of three years, with an option to extend for four additional one-year periods.
	Explanation:
PURPOSE OF REQUEST	Approval of the recommended action will allow the Department to maintain a pool of qualified Contractors to provide as-needed Services for the Department's preemployment polygraph examination operation.
BACKGROUND	On September 2, 2025, the Department issued a Request for Statement of
(include internal/external	Qualifications (RFSQ) with an initial due date of October 2, 2025.
issues that may exist including any related	 The RFSQ will remain open until the needs of the Department are met. Upon the Board's approval of this action, the Sheriff will execute Master Agreements
motions)	with all qualified vendors.
EQUITY INDEX OR LENS WAS UTILIZED	☐ Yes ☐ No If Yes, please explain how:
SUPPORTS ONE OF THE	☐ Yes ☑ No
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES	If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how:
DEPARTMENTAL	Name, Title, Phone # & Email:
CONTACTS	Laura Avelar, Captain (213) 229-3116, <u>LAvelar@lasd.org</u>
	Cynthia Lopez, Contracts Manager, (213) 229-3267, ctlopez@lasd.org

November 12, 2025

The Honorable Board of Supervisors County of Los Angeles 383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 500 West Temple Street Los Angeles, California 90012

Dear Supervisors:

APPROVE MODEL MASTER AGREEMENT FOR POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES (ALL DISTRICTS) (3 VOTES)

SUBJECT

The Los Angeles County (County) Sheriff's Department (Department) is seeking Board approval of a Model Master Agreement (Model Agreement) that will be used to execute Master Agreements (Agreements) with qualified vendors to provide as-needed Polygraph Examination Services (Services) for the Department's Personnel Administration Bureau.

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE BOARD:

- 1. Approve the attached Model Agreement for a term of three years, with an option to extend for four additional one-year option periods, for a total term not to exceed seven years.
- 2. Delegate authority to the Sheriff, or his designee, to execute Agreements substantially similar to the attached Model Agreement with qualified vendors commencing upon execution by the Sheriff, or his designee.
- 3. Delegate Authority to the Sheriff, or his designee, to execute Amendments and Change Notices to the Agreements as set forth throughout the Model Agreement, to: (1) effectuate modifications which, do not materially affect any term of the

The Honorable Board of Supervisors November 12, 2025 Page 2

Agreements, (2) add new or revised standard County contract provisions adopted by the Board required periodically, (3) exercise option terms if it is in the best interest of the County, (4) effectuate the assignment and delegations/mergers or acquisitions provision, and (5) terminate Agreements, either in whole or in part, by provision of a ten-day written notice.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

The Department has historically utilized qualified contractors to provide as-needed Services during periods of increased hiring. Sworn staffing levels are at a critically low level, resulting in the Department's aggressive hiring efforts and the need to increase Services to help expedite the background process.

The Department's current Model Master Agreement for Services was approved by the Board on December 21, 2021, and expires on January 16, 2027. The Department has decided to resolicit for a new Model Master Agreement for Services in order to establish competitive rates with the intent of attracting a larger pool of qualified vendors.

Since 2014, the fixed hourly rate of \$75 per hour for a minimum three-hour test has remained unchanged. The new Model Agreement will increase the rate to \$112.25 per hour for a minimum three-hour test. The new rates are necessary to remain competitive with other local agencies and coincide with rates paid by the County's Probation Department for similar Services.

Approval of the recommended actions will allow the Department to establish agreements with a pool of qualified contractors to support the Personnel Administration Bureau's Pre-employment Unit with hiring backlog and the Department's critical mission of increasing sworn staffing levels. It is the intent of the Department to issue work to active contractors on a rotational basis by availability and geographical area.

<u>Implementation of Strategic Plan Goals</u>

The recommended action supports the principles of the County Strategic Plan's North Star 2: Foster Vibrant and Resilient Communities; Focus Area Goal C. Public Safety; Strategy ii, Operational Enhancement: Enhance organizational and administrative operations, and training of our public safety entities, to better serve the community by streamlining the hiring process and increasing the presence of law enforcement in the community.

The Honorable Board of Supervisors November 12, 2025 Page 3

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The estimated annual cost for these Services is approximately \$500,000. Actual expenditures will be incurred solely on an as-needed basis. Over the term of the Agreements, appropriate allocations will be established in the Department's operating budget to meet the anticipated needs each fiscal year.

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The Model Agreement was determined to be a Non-Proposition A agreement due to the Services being highly specialized and used on an as-needed basis.

The Model Agreement requires contractors to comply with all Board and Chief Executive Office requirements, including Jury Service, Safely Surrendered Baby Law, Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program, Zero Tolerance Policy for Human Trafficking, Fair Chance Employment, Policy of Equity, Prohibition from Participation in Future Solicitations, and Campaign Contribution Prohibition Following Final Decision in Master Agreement Proceeding.

The attached Model Agreement has been approved as to form by County Counsel.

CONTRACTING PROCESS

On September 2, 2025, the Department released a Request for Statement of Qualifications (RFSQ) 744-SH to solicit Statements of Qualifications from vendors to provide Services. The Department posted the solicitation on the County and Department website with an initial due date of October 2, 2025.

The RFSQ will remain open until the needs of the Department are met. Upon the Board's approval of this action, the Sheriff, or his designee, will execute Agreements with the qualified contractors.

<u>IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS)</u>

Approval of the Model Agreement will enable the Department to maintain a pool of qualified contractors to assist in providing Services to the Department's Pre-employment Unit.

The Honorable Board of Supervisors November 12, 2025 Page 4

CONCLUSION

Upon Board approval, please return a copy of the adopted Board to the Department's Contracts Unit.

Sincerely,

ROBERT G. LUNA SHERIFF



MODEL MASTER AGREEMENT



MASTER AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

AND

[CONTRACTOR]

FOR

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

PAR/	AGRAF	<u>PH </u>	PAGE
RECI	TALS		1
1.0	APPL	ICABLE DOCUMENTS	2
2.0	DEFII	NITIONS	2
3.0		K	
4.0	TERM	/I OF MASTER AGREEMENT	4
5.0	CONT	TRACT SUM	5
	5.1	General	5
	5.2	Total Contract Sum	
	5.3	Written Approval for Reimbursement	5
	5.4	No Payment for Services Provided Following Expiration/Termination of Mast Agreement	
	5.5	Invoices and Payments	6
	5.6	Default Method of Payment: Direct Deposit or Electronic Funds Transfer	8
6.0	ADMI	NISTRATION OF MASTER AGREEMENT – COUNTY	8
	6.1	County Project Director	8
	6.2	County Project Manager	8
7.0	ADMI	NISTRATION OF MASTER AGREEMENT – CONTRACTOR	9
	7.1	Contractor Project Manager	9
	7.2	Contractor's Authorized Official(s)	9
	7.3	Approval of Contractor's Staff	9
	7.4	Contractor's Staff Identification	9
	7.5	Background and Security Investigations	10
	7.6	Confidentiality	10
8.0	STAN	IDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS	11
	8.1	Amendments and Change Notices	11
	8.2	Assignment and Delegation/Mergers or Acquisitions	12
	8.3	Authorization Warranty	12
	8.4	Complaints	12
	8.5	Compliance with Applicable Laws	13
	8.6	Compliance with Civil Rights Laws	14

8.7 Compliance with County's Jury Service Program
8.9 Consideration of Hiring County Employees Targeted for Layoffs or are on a County Re-employment List10
County Re-employment List1
O 40 O THE STATE OF THE STATE O
8.10 Consideration of Hiring GAIN/START Participants1
8.11 Contractor Responsibility and Debarment1
8.12 Contractor's Acknowledgement of County's Commitment to Safely Surrendered Baby Law18
8.13 Contractor's Warranty of Adherence to County's Child Support Compliance Program18
8.14 County's Quality Assurance Plan1
8.15 Damage to County Facilities, Buildings or Grounds1
8.16 Employment Eligibility Verification19
8.17 Counterparts and Electronic Signatures and Representations20
8.18 Fair Labor Standards20
8.19 Force Majeure20
8.20 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue2
8.21 Independent Contractor Status
8.22 Indemnification2
8.23 General Provisions for all Insurance Coverage2
8.24 Insurance Coverage29
8.25 Liquidated Damages20
8.26 Most Favored Public Entity2
8.27 Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action2
8.28 Non Exclusivity2
8.29 Notice of Delays2
8.30 Notice of Disputes
8.31 Notice to Employees Regarding the Federal Earned Income Credit2
8.32 Notice to Employees Regarding the Safely Surrendered Baby Law29
8.33 Notices
8.34 Prohibition Against Inducement or Persuasion

PARAGRAPI		PH TITLE	
	8.35	Public Records Act	29
	8.36	Publicity	30
	8.37	Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement	30
	8.38	Recycled Bond Paper	31
	8.39	Subcontracting	31
	8.40	Termination for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with County's Support Compliance Program	
	8.41	Termination for Convenience	32
	8.42	Termination for Default	33
	8.43	Termination for Improper Consideration	34
	8.44	Termination for Insolvency	34
	8.45	Termination for Non-Adherence of County Lobbyist Ordinance	35
	8.46	Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds	35
	8.47	Validity	35
	8.48	Waiver	35
	8.49	Warranty Against Contingent Fees	35
	8.50	Warranty of Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program	
	8.51	Termination for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program	
	8.52	Time off For Voting	36
	8.53	Compliance with County's Zero Tolerance Policy on Human Trafficking	36
	8.54	Intentionally Omitted	37
	8.55	Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Hiring Practices	37
	8.56	Compliance with the County Policy of Equity	37
	8.57	Prohibition from Participation in Future Solicitation(s)	37
	8.58	Injury and Illness Prevention Program	37
	8.59	Campaign Contribution Prohibition Following Final Decision in Master Agreeding	
9.0	UNIQ	UE TERMS AND CONDITIONS	38
	9.1	Intentionally Omitted	38

PARAGRAP	<u>'H</u> <u>TITLE</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
9.2	Intentionally Omitted	38
9.3	Intentionally Omitted	38
9.4	Intentionally Omitted	38
9.5	Intentionally Omitted	38
9.6	Local Small Business Enterprise (LSBE) Preference Program (If Application	ole)38
9.7	Social Enterprise (SE) Preference Program (If Applicable)	39
9.8	Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) Preference Program (If Applicable)	39
10.0 SUR\	/IVAL	40
SIGNATURI	=S	42

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 Statement of Work

Attachment 1A Examination Log

Attachment 1B Examiner Billing Log

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A County's Administration

Exhibit B Contractor's Administration

Exhibit C Safely Surrendered Baby Law

Exhibit D1 Certification of Employee Status

Exhibit D2 Certification of No Conflict of Interest

Exhibit D3 Contractor Acknowledgement and Confidentiality Agreement

Exhibit E Rate of Compensation

Exhibit F Contract Discrepancy Report

Exhibit G Invoice Discrepancy Report

MASTER AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

AND

[CONTRACTOR]

FOR

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

This Master Agreement, Attachments, and Exhibits made and entered into on by and
between the County of Los Angeles (County), Sheriff's Department (Department) and
(Contractor), to provide as-needed Polygraph Examination Services
(Services) is located at
<u>RECITALS</u>
WHEREAS, the County may contract with private businesses for Services when certain requirements are met; and
WHEREAS, Contractor is a private (public, non-profit) firm specializing in providing Services; and
WHEREAS, this Master Agreement is therefore authorized under California Codes, Government Code Section 31000, which authorizes the Board of Supervisors (Board) to contract for special services; and
WHEREAS, the Board has authorized the Sheriff, or his designee to execute and administer this Master Agreement; and
NOW THEREFORE in a side of the marked account and in all bounds and for used and

1.0 APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS

Attachments 1, 1A, 1B, and Exhibits A through G are attached to and form a part of this Master Agreement. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency in the definition or interpretation of any word, responsibility, schedule, or the contents or description of any task, deliverable, goods, Service, or other Work, or otherwise between the base Master Agreement and Attachments and the Exhibits, or between Attachments and Exhibits, such conflict or inconsistency will be resolved by giving precedence first to this Master Agreement and then to the Attachments and Exhibits according to the following priority:

Attachments:

Attachment 1 Statement of Work

Attachment 1A Examination Log

Attachment 1B Examiner Billing Log

Exhibits:

Exhibit A County's Administration

Exhibit B Contractor's Administration

Exhibit C Safely Surrendered Baby Law

Exhibit D1 Certification of Employee Status

Exhibit D2 Certification of No Conflict of Interest

Exhibit D3 Contractor Acknowledgement and Confidentiality Agreement

Exhibit E Rate of Compensation

Exhibit F Contract Discrepancy Report
Exhibit G Invoice Discrepancy Report

This Master Agreement, Attachments, and Exhibits hereto constitute the complete and exclusive statement of understanding between the parties, and supersedes all previous Master Agreements, written and oral, and all communications between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Master Agreement. No change to this Master Agreement will be valid unless prepared pursuant to Paragraph 8.1 (Amendments and Change Notices) of this Master Agreement and signed by both parties.

2.0 DEFINITIONS

The headings herein contained are for convenience and reference only and are not intended to define the scope of any provision thereof. The following words as used herein will be construed to have the following meaning, unless otherwise apparent from the context in which they are used.

- 2.1 Active Contractor: Identifies a Qualified Contractor who is in compliance with the terms and conditions and whose evidence of insurance requirements have all been received by the Department and are valid and in effect at the time Work is issued. As used herein, the terms Active Contractor and Contractor may be used interchangeably throughout this Master Agreement.
- **2.2 Amendment**: Has the meaning set forth in Paragraph 8.1 (Amendments and Change Notices) of this Master Agreement.

- 2.3 Business Day(s): Monday through Friday, excluding County-observed holidays.
- **2.4 Change Notice**: Has the meaning set forth in Paragraph 8.1 (Amendments and Change Notices) of this Master Agreement.
- **2.5 Contractor**: The sole proprietor, partnership, or corporation that has entered into this Master Agreement with the County as identified in the preamble.
- **2.6 Contractor Project Manager**: The individual designated by Contractor to oversee and administer the operations of this Master Agreement following Master Agreement award.
- **2.7 County Project Director**: The individual designated by the County with the authority to approve and issue all Work and manage all contractual or administrative matters related to this Master Agreement. All references to "County Project Director" will mean "County Project Director or designee," unless otherwise specified.
- **2.8 County Project Manager**: The individual designated by the County Project Director as the primary contact for managing the day-to-day operations of this Master Agreement. All references to "County Project Manager" will mean "County Project Manager or designee," unless otherwise specified.
- **2.9** Day(s): Calendar day(s) unless otherwise specified.
- **2.10 Fiscal Year**: The 12-month period beginning July 1st and ending on June 30th of the following year.
- **2.11 Master Agreement**: County's standard agreement executed between the County and individual Contractors. It sets forth the terms and conditions for the issuance and performance of, and otherwise governs, subsequent Work.
- **2.12 Polygraph Examinee**: Means a person who is taking a polygraph examination.
- **2.13 Qualified Contractor**: A Contractor who has submitted a Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) in response to County's Request for Statement of Qualifications (RFSQ), has met the Vendor's Minimum Mandatory Qualifications listed in the RFSQ and holds an executed Master Agreement with the Department.
- **2.14 Request for Statement of Qualifications (RFSQ)**: A solicitation based on establishing a pool of Qualified Vendors to provide services through Master Agreements.
- 2.15 Statement of Qualifications (SOQ): A Contractor's response to an RFSQ.
- **2.16 Statement of Work**: The document that provides a written description of tasks, subtasks, directions, deliverables, goods, Services, and other Work, and specifies Contractor's Work requirements and obligations, as set forth in Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) to this Master Agreement.
- **2.17 Term**: Has the meaning set forth in Paragraph 4.0 (Term of Master Agreement) of this Master Agreement.
- **2.18 Work**: Any and all tasks, subtasks, deliverables, goods, and other Services performed by or on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement, including all Attachments and Exhibits, and all fully executed Amendments and Change Notices hereto.

3.0 WORK

- 3.1 Pursuant to the provisions of this Master Agreement, Contractor must fully perform, complete, and deliver on time, all tasks, deliverables, Services and other Work as set forth in this Master Agreement, including Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) and all other Work under this Master Agreement.
- 3.2 It is the intent of the Department to issue Work to Active Contractors on a rotational basis by availability and geographical area in accordance with Paragraph 4.0 (Guidelines for the Distribution of Work) of Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) to this Master Agreement, based upon the needs of the Department. However, County Project Manager has the sole discretion to issue Work to any of the Active Contractors.
- 3.3 The County will refer Polygraph Examinees to Contractor for Services as set forth in Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) to this Master Agreement.
- 3.4 Contractor acknowledges that all Work performed under this Master Agreement is payable in arrears on a monthly basis in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Agreement, including this Paragraph 3.0 (Work) and Paragraph 5.0 (Contract Sum) of this Master Agreement.
- 3.5 If Contractor provides any tasks, deliverable, goods, Services, or Work to the County, other than as specified in this Master Agreement, the same will be deemed to be a gratuitous effort on the part of Contractor, and Contractor will have no claim whatsoever against the County.
- 3.6 All such Work must be provided solely as specified under this Master Agreement and must receive the written approval of County Project Manager in order to qualify for payment. In no event will the County be liable or responsible for payment for any Work prior to approval from County Project Manager of such Work.
 - 3.6.1 Contractor's failure to obtain written approval from County Project Manager prior to performing Work will constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement, upon which the County may suspend or terminate this Master Agreement.
- 3.7 Upon execution of this Master Agreement, Contractor will be assigned a Department email address. All correspondence pertaining to this Master Agreement must be made through Contractor's assigned Department email.
- 3.8 During the Term of this Master Agreement, Contractor must possess and maintain all licenses and/or certifications required to perform Work under this Master Agreement. In the event of suspension or revocation of such licenses and/or certifications, Contractor must immediately notify County Project Manager and cease providing all Work under this Master Agreement.

4.0 TERM OF MASTER AGREEMENT

4.1 This Master Agreement will commence upon the date of execution by the Sheriff or his designee, as authorized by the Board. This Master Agreement will expire on _____, unless extended or terminated sooner, in whole or in part, as provided herein.

- 4.2 The County will have the sole option to extend this Master Agreement Term for up to four additional one-year option periods for a maximum total Master Agreement Term of seven years. Each such option period will be exercised at the sole discretion of the Sheriff, or his designee, as authorized by the Board and will be in the form of a written Amendment executed in accordance with Paragraph 8.1 (Amendments and Change Notices) of this Master Agreement.
- 4.3 The County maintains a database to track and monitor Contractor performance history. Information entered into this database may be utilized for various purposes, including the determination of whether the County will exercise an option period under this Master Agreement.
- 4.4 Contractor must notify the Department when this Master Agreement is within six months from the expiration of the Term as provided for hereinabove. Upon occurrence of this event, Contractor must send written notification to County Project Director at the address provided in Exhibit A (County's Administration) to this Master Agreement.

5.0 CONTRACT SUM

5.1 General

The prices and fees payable by the County to Contractor for performing all tasks, deliverables, goods, Services and any other Work required under this Master Agreement are set forth in Exhibit E (Rate of Compensation) to this Master Agreement. Such prices and fees are firm and fixed for the Term of this Master Agreement.

5.2 Total Contract Sum

Contractor will not be entitled to any payment by the County under this Master Agreement except pursuant to executed and satisfactorily performed Work. In each year of this Master Agreement, the total of all amounts actually expended by the County hereunder ("maximum annual expenditures") may not exceed amounts allocated to the Department by the Board in their approved budgets. The County has sole discretion to expend some, all, or none of such budgeted amounts. The sum of such annual expenditures for the duration of this Master Agreement is the Contract Sum.

5.3 Written Approval for Reimbursement

Contractor will not be entitled to payment or reimbursement for any tasks or Services performed, nor for any incidental or administrative expenses whatsoever incurred in or incidental to performance hereunder, except as specified herein. Assumption or takeover of any of Contractor's duties, responsibilities, or obligations, or performance of same by any entity other than Contractor, whether through assignment, subcontract, delegation, merger, buyout, or any other mechanism, with or without consideration for any reason whatsoever, will occur only with the County's express prior written approval.

5.4 No Payment for Services Provided Following Expiration/Termination of Master Agreement

5.4.1 Contractor will have no claim against the County for payment of any money or reimbursement, of any kind whatsoever, for any Service

provided by Contractor after the expiration or other termination of this Master Agreement. Should Contractor receive any such payment it must immediately notify the County and must immediately repay all such funds to the County. Payment by the County for Services rendered after expiration/termination of this Master Agreement will not constitute a waiver of the County's right to recover such payment from Contractor.

5.4.2 Notwithstanding the above, Contractor will be entitled to payment for Services that are satisfactorily completed after the expiration or other termination of this Master Agreement, provided that any such Services are rendered pursuant to any Work that was validly executed during the Term of this Master Agreement. This provision will survive the expiration or other termination of this Master Agreement.

5.5 Invoices and Payments

5.5.1 Invoices Content

Each invoice submitted by Contractor for each Polygraph Examinee must contain the following information:

- Contractor's name, address, and telephone number,
- Master Agreement number,
- Invoice number and date,
- Charge for each Service,
- Contractor must indicate the date the Polygraph Examinee showed, canceled, or was a "no show,"
- Total amount due for the month,
- A log of billed exams must be attached to the invoice. See Attachment 1A (Examination Log) and Attachment 1B (Examination Billing Log) to Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) to this Master Agreement, and
- In the event additional hours are approved by County Project Manager, and to receive payment, the submitted invoice must have the email correspondence with the approval of the additional hours.

County Project Manager has the discretion to request any additional documentation and/or information.

5.5.2 Monthly Reports

Contractor must submit a monthly report with the original invoice to County Project Manager with the following minimum information:

- a. Name of each Polygraph Examinee for which Services were performed in the billing period,
- b. Date the Service was performed during the billing period,
- c. Total number of exams.
- d. Total number of hours.

- e. Total number of "no shows" of Polygraph Examinees, and
- f. Total billing.

5.5.3 Submission of Invoices

Contractor must submit an original invoice to County Project Manager listed in Exhibit A (County's Administration) to this Master Agreement, within 15 Days following the month in which Services were performed. The Department will not be responsible for invoices submitted more than 60 Days after the date of Service rendered. The County will be under no obligation to remit payment for late, lost, or mishandled invoices. Contractor is responsible for the accuracy of invoices submitted to the Department.

5.5.4 Approval of Invoices

All invoices submitted by Contractor for payment must receive the written approval of County Project Director before payment of an invoice(s) is permitted. In no event will the County be liable or responsible for any payment prior to such written approval.

5.5.5 No Out-of-Pocket Expenses

Contractor acknowledges that out-of-pocket expenses, including travel, meal, and lodging expenses, are not reimbursable by the County. Accordingly, Contractor's invoices must not include out-of-pocket expenses.

5.5.6 Invoice Discrepancy Report

County Project Manager will review all invoices for any discrepancies and issue an Invoice Discrepancy Report (IDR) [refer to Exhibit G (Invoice Discrepancy Report) to this Master Agreement], to Contractor within five Business Days of receipt of invoice if payment amounts are disputed. Contractor must review the disputed charges and submit to County Project Manager a written explanation detailing the basis for the charges within five Business Days of receipt of the IDR from County Project Manager. If County Project Manager does not receive a written response from Contractor within five Business Days of the County's notice to Contractor of an IDR, then payment will be made by the County, less the disputed charges. None of the foregoing will preclude the County from seeking remedy from Contractor for invoice discrepancies discovered at any time during the Term of this Master Agreement.

5.5.7 Preference Program Enterprises – Prompt Payment Program

Certified Prompt Payment Enterprises (PPEs) will receive prompt payment for Services they provide to County departments. Prompt payment is defined as 15 Days after receipt of an approved, undisputed invoice which has been properly matched against documents such as a receiving, shipping, or services delivered report, or any other validation of receipt document consistent with <u>Board Policy 3.035 (Preference Program Payment Liaison and Prompt Payment Program)</u>.

5.6 Default Method of Payment: Direct Deposit or Electronic Funds Transfer

- 5.6.1 The County has determined that the most efficient and secure default form of payment for goods and/or Services provided under this Master Agreement with the County will be Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) or direct deposit, unless an alternative method of payment is deemed appropriate by the Auditor-Controller (A-C).
- 5.6.2 Contractor must submit a direct deposit authorization request via the website https://directdeposit.lacounty.gov with banking and vendor information, and any other information that the A-C determines is reasonably necessary to process the payment and comply with all accounting, record keeping, and tax reporting requirements.
- 5.6.3 Any provision of law, grant, or funding agreement requiring a specific form or method of payment other than EFT or direct deposit will supersede this requirement with respect to those payments.
- 5.6.4 At any time during the duration of this Master Agreement, Contractor may submit a written request for an exemption to this requirement. Such request must be based on specific legal, business or operational needs and explain why the payment method designated by the A-C is not feasible and an alternative is necessary. The A-C, in consultation with the contracting department(s), will decide whether to approve exemption requests.

6.0 ADMINISTRATION OF MASTER AGREEMENT - COUNTY

A listing of all County Administration referenced in the following Paragraphs is designated in Exhibit A (County's Administration) to this Master Agreement. The County will notify Contractor in writing of any change in the names or addresses shown therein.

6.1 County Project Director

The responsibilities of County Project Director may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a. Ensuring that the objectives of this Master Agreement are met, and
- b. Providing direction to Contractor, in areas relating to County policies, information requirements, and procedural requirements.

6.2 County Project Manager

The responsibilities of County Project Manager may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a. Acting as the primary point of contact for the day-to-day administration of this Master Agreement,
- b. Issuing Work,
- c. Inspecting any and all tasks, deliverables, goods, Services, or other Work provided by or on behalf of Contractor,
- d. Meeting with Contractor Project Manager on a regular basis to discuss any issues or concerns related to this Master Agreement.

- e. Issuing contract discrepancy reports in accordance with Paragraph 8.2 (Contract Discrepancy Report) of Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) to this Master Agreement. A sample of the Contract Discrepancy Report is attached as Exhibit F (Contract Discrepancy Report) to this Master Agreement,
- f. Issuing invoice discrepancy reports in accordance with Paragraph 5.5.6 (Invoice Discrepancy Report) of this Master Agreement. A sample of the Invoice Discrepancy Report is attached as Exhibit G (Invoice Discrepancy Report) to this Master Agreement.

7.0 ADMINISTRATION OF MASTER AGREEMENT – CONTRACTOR

A listing of all Contractor Administration referenced in the following Paragraphs is designated in Exhibit B (Contractor's Administration) to this Master Agreement. Contractor must notify the County in writing of any change in the names or addresses shown therein.

7.1 Contractor Project Manager

The responsibilities of Contractor Project Manager may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- a. Overseeing Contractor's day-to-day activities related to this Master Agreement and coordinating regularly with County Project Manager on a regular basis with respect to all Work.
- Being responsible for Contractor's performance of all tasks, deliverables, good, Services, or other Work, and ensuring Contractor's compliance with this Master Agreement.

7.2 Contractor's Authorized Official(s)

Contractor represents and warrants that all requirements of Contractor have been fulfilled to provide actual authority to such officials to execute documents under this Master Agreement on behalf of Contractor.

7.3 Approval of Contractor's Staff

The County has the absolute right to approve or disapprove all of Contractor's staff performing Work hereunder and any proposed changes in Contractor's staff, including, but not limited to, Contractor Project Manager. Contractor must provide the County with a resume of each proposed substitute and an opportunity to interview such person prior to any staff substitution.

7.4 Contractor's Staff Identification

- 7.4.1 All of Contractor's staff assigned to perform Work at County facilities are required to have an Identification badge on their person and visible at all times. Contractor is responsible for ensuring that staff have obtained a County ID badge before they are assigned to Work in a County facility. Contractor personnel may be asked to leave a County facility by a County representative if they do not have the proper Identification badge on their person.
- 7.4.2 Contractor must notify the County within one Business Day when staff are terminated from working under this Master Agreement. Contractor must retrieve and return staff's Department-issued Identification badge to the

- County by the next Business Day following the termination of their employment with Contractor.
- 7.4.3 If the County requests the removal of Contractor's staff, Contractor must retrieve and return staff's Department-issued Identification badge to the County by the next Business Day following the removal of Contractors staff working under this Master Agreement.

7.5 Background and Security Investigations

- 7.5.1 At any time prior to or during the Term of this Master Agreement, all Contractor staff, non-employee staff, subcontractors, and agents of Contractor (collectively herein "Contractor's staff") performing Services under this Master Agreement must undergo and pass a background investigation to the satisfaction of the County as a condition of beginning and continuing to perform Services under this Master Agreement. Such background investigation may include, but will not be limited to, criminal conviction information obtained through a Driver License check or through fingerprints submitted to the California Department of Justice to include state, local, and federal-level review. The fees associated with the background investigation will be at the expense of Contractor, regardless of whether Contractor's staff passes or fails the background investigation.
- 7.5.2. County Project Director will schedule the background investigations with the Department's Civilian Backgrounds Unit. If a member of Contractor's staff does not pass the background investigation, the County may request that the member of Contractor's staff be immediately removed from performing Services under this Master Agreement at any time during the Term of this Master Agreement. The County will not provide to Contractor or to Contractor's staff any information obtained through the County's background investigation.
- 7.5.3 The County, in its sole discretion, may immediately deny or terminate facility access to any member of Contractor's staff who fails to pass a background investigation to the County's satisfaction or whose background or conduct is determined to be incompatible with access to County facilities.
- 7.5.4 Disqualification of any member of Contractor's staff pursuant to this Paragraph 7.5 (Background and Security Investigations) will not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete all Work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Agreement.

7.6 Confidentiality

- 7.6.1 Contractor must maintain the confidentiality of all records and information in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies and procedures relating to confidentiality, including, without limitation, County policies concerning information technology security and the protection of confidential records and information.
- 7.6.2 Contractor must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims,

demands, damages, liabilities, losses, costs and expenses, including, without limitation, defense costs and legal, accounting and other expert, consulting, or professional fees, arising from, connected with, or related to any failure by Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors, to comply with this Paragraph 7.6 (Confidentiality), as determined by the County in its sole judgment. Any legal defense pursuant to Contractor's indemnification obligations under this Paragraph 7.6 (Confidentiality) will be conducted by Contractor and performed by counsel selected by Contractor and approved by the County. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the County will have the right to participate in any such defense at its sole cost and expense, except that in the event Contractor fails to provide the County with a full and adequate defense, as determined by the County in its sole judgment, the County will be entitled to retain its own counsel, including, without limitation, County Counsel, and reimbursement from Contractor for all such costs and expenses incurred by the County in doing so. Contractor will not have the right to enter into any settlement, agree to any injunction, or make any admission, in each case, on behalf of the County without the County's prior written approval.

- 7.6.3 Contractor must inform all of its officers, employees, agents and subcontractors providing Services hereunder of the confidentiality provisions of this Master Agreement.
- 7.6.4 Contractor must sign and adhere to the provisions of the Exhibit D3 (Contractor Acknowledgement and Confidentiality Agreement) to this Master Agreement.

8.0 STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

8.1 Amendments and Change Notices

- 8.1.1 The Board or Chief Executive Officer or designee may require the addition and/or change of certain terms and conditions in this Master Agreement during the Term of this Master Agreement. The County reserves the right to add and/or change such provisions as required by the Board or Chief Executive Officer. To implement such orders, an Amendment to this Master Agreement must be prepared and executed by both Contractor and the Sheriff, or his designee.
- 8.1.2 For any change which materially affects the scope of Work, Term, price, payments, or any other term or condition of this Master Agreement, an Amendment to this Master Agreement must be executed by both Contractor and the Board.
- 8.1.3 For any change which does not materially affect the scope of Work, Term, price, payments, or any other term or condition of this Master Agreement, a Change Notice to this Master Agreement must be executed by both Contractor Project Manager and County Project Director.
- 8.1.4 Notwithstanding Paragraphs 8.1.1 through 8.1.3 above, the Sheriff, or his designee, at their sole discretion, is authorized to: (a) exercise option periods to extend the Term of this Master Agreement as outlined in

Paragraph 4.0 (Term of Master Agreement) and (b) effectuate modifications pursuant to Paragraph 8.2 (Assignment and Delegation/Mergers or Acquisitions) below. To implement such actions, an Amendment to this Master Agreement must be executed by both Contractor and the Sheriff, or his designee.

8.2 Assignment and Delegation/Mergers or Acquisitions

- 8.2.1 Contractor must notify the County of any pending acquisitions/mergers of its company unless otherwise legally prohibited from doing so. If Contractor is restricted from legally notifying the County of pending acquisitions/mergers, then it should notify the County of the actual acquisitions/mergers as soon as the law allows and provide to the County the legal framework that restricted it from notifying the County prior to the actual acquisitions/mergers.
- 8.2.2 Contractor must not assign, exchange, transfer, or delegate its rights or duties under this Master Agreement, whether in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the County, in its discretion, and any attempted assignment, delegation, or otherwise transfer of its rights or duties, without such consent will be null and void. For purposes of this Paragraph, County consent will require a written Amendment to this Master Agreement, which must be formally approved and executed by the parties. Any payments by the County to any approved delegate or assignee on any claim under this Master Agreement will be deductible, at the County's sole discretion, against the claims, which Contractor may have against the County.
- 8.2.3 Any assumption, assignment, delegation, or takeover of any of Contractor's duties, responsibilities, obligations, or performance of same by any person or entity other than Contractor, whether through assignment, subcontract, delegation, merger, buyout, or any other mechanism, with or without consideration for any reason whatsoever without the County's express prior written approval, will be a material breach of this Master Agreement which may result in the termination of this Master Agreement. In the event of such termination, the County will be entitled to pursue the same remedies against Contractor as it could pursue in the event of default by Contractor.

8.3 Authorization Warranty

Contractor represents and warrants that the person executing this Master Agreement for Contractor is an authorized agent who has actual authority to bind Contractor to each and every term, condition, and obligation of this Master Agreement and that all requirements of Contractor have been fulfilled to provide such actual authority.

8.4 Complaints

Contractor must develop, maintain and operate procedures for receiving, investigating and responding to complaints.

8.4.1 Within ten Business Days after this Master Agreement's effective date, Contractor must provide the County with Contractor's policy for receiving, investigating and responding to user complaints.

- 8.4.2 The County will review Contractor's policy and provide Contractor with approval of said plan or with requested changes.
- 8.4.3 If the County requests changes in Contractor's policy, Contractor must make such changes and resubmit the plan within ten Business Days for County approval.
- 8.4.4 If, at any time, Contractor wishes to change Contractor's policy, Contractor must submit proposed changes to the County for approval before implementation.
- 8.4.5 Contractor must preliminarily investigate all complaints and notify County Project Manager of the status of the investigation within ten Business Days of receiving the complaint.
- 8.4.6 When complaints cannot be resolved informally, a system of follow-through will be instituted which adheres to formal plans for specific actions and strict time deadlines.
- 8.4.7 Copies of all written responses must be sent to County Project Manager within ten Business Days of mailing to the complainant.

8.5 Compliance with Applicable Laws

- 8.5.1 In the performance of this Master Agreement, Contractor must comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies and procedures, and all provisions required thereby to be included in this Master Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by reference.
- 8.5.2 Contractor must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County, its officers, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, and expenses, including, without limitation, defense costs and legal, accounting and other expert, consulting or professional fees, arising from, connected with, or related to any failure by Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors, to comply with any such laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, directives, guidelines, policies, or procedures, as determined by the County in its sole judgment. Any legal defense pursuant to Contractor's indemnification obligations under this Paragraph 8.5 (Compliance with Applicable Laws) will be conducted by Contractor and performed by counsel selected by Contractor and approved by the County, Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the County will have the right to participate in any such defense at its sole cost and expense, except that in the event Contractor fails to provide the County with a full and adequate defense, as determined by the County in its sole judgment, the County will be entitled to retain its own counsel, including, without limitation, County Counsel, and reimbursement from Contractor for all such costs and expenses incurred by the County in doing so. Contractor will not have the right to enter into any settlement, agree to any injunction or other equitable relief, or make any admission, in each case, on behalf of the County without the County's prior written approval.

8.6 Compliance with Civil Rights Laws

Contractor hereby assures that it will comply with Subchapter VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 USC Sections 2000 (e) (1) through 2000 (e) (17), to the end that no person will, on the grounds of race, creed, color, sex, religion, ancestry, age, condition of physical handicap, marital status, political affiliation, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Master Agreement or under any project, program, or activity supported by this Master Agreement. Additionally, Contractor certifies to the County:

- a. That Contractor has a written policy statement prohibiting discrimination in all phases of employment,
- b. That Contractor periodically conducts a self-analysis or utilization analysis of its work force.
- c. That Contractor has a system for determining if its employment practices are discriminatory against protected groups, and
- d. Where problem areas are identified in employment practices, that Contractor has a system for taking reasonable corrective action, to include establishment of goals or timetables.

8.7 Compliance with County's Jury Service Program

8.7.1 Jury Service Program

This Master Agreement is subject to the provisions of the County's ordinance entitled Contractor Employee Jury Service ("Jury Service Program") as codified in <u>Sections 2.203.010 through 2.203.090 of the Los Angeles County Code</u>.

8.7.2 Written Employee Jury Service Policy

- Unless Contractor has demonstrated to the County's satisfaction either that Contractor is not a "Contractor" as defined under the <u>Jury Service Program (Section 2.203.020 of the County Code)</u> or that Contractor qualifies for an exception to the <u>Jury Service Program (Section 2.203.070 of the County Code)</u>, Contractor must have and adhere to a written policy that provides that its employees will receive from Contractor, on an annual basis, no less than five Days of regular pay for actual jury service. The policy may provide that employees deposit any fees received for such jury service with Contractor or that Contractor deduct from the employee's regular pay the fees received for jury service.
- For purposes of this Paragraph, "Contractor" means a person, partnership, corporation or other entity which has a Master Agreement with the County or a subcontract with a County Contractor and has received or will receive an aggregate sum of \$50,000 or more in any 12-month period under one or more County Master Agreements or subcontracts. "Employee" means any California resident who is a full time employee of Contractor. "Full-time" means 40 hours or more worked per week, or a lesser number of hours if: (a) the lesser number

is a recognized industry standard as determined by the County, or (b) Contractor has a long-standing practice that defines the lesser number of hours as full-time. Full-time employees providing short-term, temporary services of 90 Days or less within a 12-month period are not considered full-time for purposes of the Jury Service Program. If Contractor uses any subcontractor to perform services for the County under this Master Agreement, the subcontractor will also be subject to the provisions of this Paragraph. The provisions of this Paragraph will be inserted into any such subcontract agreement and a copy of the Jury Service Program must be attached to the agreement.

- If Contractor is not required to comply with the Jury Service Program when this Master Agreement commences, Contractor will have a continuing obligation to review the applicability of its "exception status" from the Jury Service Program, and Contractor must immediately notify the County if Contractor at any time either comes within the Jury Service Program's definition of "Contractor" or if Contractor no longer qualifies for an exception to the Jury Service Program. In either event, Contractor must immediately implement a written policy consistent with the Jury Service Program. The County may also require, at any time during this Master Agreement and at its sole discretion, that Contractor demonstrate to the County's satisfaction that Contractor either continues to remain outside of the Jury Service Program's definition of "Contractor" and/or that Contractor continues to qualify for an exception to the Program.
- Contractor's violation of this Paragraph 8.7.2 may constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement. In the event of such material breach, the County may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Master Agreement and/or bar Contractor from the award of future County Master Agreements for a period of time consistent with the seriousness of the breach.

8.8 Conflict of Interest

- 8.8.1 No County employee whose position with the County enables such employee to influence the award of this Master Agreement or any competing Master Agreement, and no spouse or economic dependent of such employee, will be employed in any capacity by Contractor or have any other direct or indirect financial interest in this Master Agreement. No officer or employee of Contractor who may financially benefit from the performance of Work hereunder will in any way participate in the County's approval, or ongoing evaluation, of such Work, or in any way attempt to unlawfully influence the County's approval or ongoing evaluation of such Work.
- 8.8.2 Contractor must comply with all conflict of interest laws, ordinances, and regulations now in effect or hereafter to be enacted during the Term of this Master Agreement. Contractor warrants that it is not now aware of any facts that create a conflict of interest. If Contractor hereafter becomes aware of any facts that might reasonably be expected to create a conflict

of interest, it must immediately make full written disclosure of such facts to the County. Full written disclosure must include, but is not limited to, identification of all persons implicated and a complete description of all relevant circumstances. Failure to comply with the provisions of this Paragraph 8.8 (Conflict of Interest) will be a material breach of this Master Agreement.

8.9 Consideration of Hiring County Employees Targeted for Layoffs or are on a County Re-employment List

Should Contractor require additional or replacement personnel after the effective date of this Master Agreement to perform the Services set forth herein, Contractor must give first consideration for such employment openings to qualified, permanent County employees who are targeted for layoff or qualified, former County employees who are on a re-employment list during the life of this Master Agreement.

8.10 Consideration of Hiring GAIN/START Participants

- 8.10.1 Should Contractor require additional or replacement personnel after the effective date of this Master Agreement, Contractor must give consideration for any such employment openings to participants in the County's Department of Public Social Services Greater Avenues for Independence (GAIN) Program or Skills and Training to Achieve Readiness for Tomorrow (START) Program who meet Contractor's minimum qualifications for the open position. For this purpose, consideration will mean that Contractor will interview qualified candidates. The County will refer GAIN/START participants by job category to Contractor. Contractors must report all job openings with job requirements to: gainstart@dpss.lacounty.gov and best yellow gainstatt@dpss.lacounty.gov and best yellow gainstatt@dpss.lacounty.gov and DPSS will refer qualified GAIN/START job candidates.
- 8.10.2 In the event that both laid-off County employees and GAIN/START participants are available for hiring, County employees must be given first priority.

8.11 Contractor Responsibility and Debarment

8.11.1 Responsible Contractor

A responsible Contractor is a Contractor who has demonstrated the attribute of trustworthiness, as well as quality, fitness, capacity and experience to satisfactorily perform this Master Agreement. It is the County's policy to conduct business only with responsible Contractors.

8.11.2 Chapter 2.202 of the County Code

Contractor is hereby notified that, in accordance with Chapter 2.202 of the County Code, if the County acquires information concerning the performance of Contractor on this or other Master Agreements which indicates that Contractor is not responsible, the County may, in addition to other remedies provided in this Master Agreement, debar Contractor from bidding or proposing on, or being awarded, and/or performing work on County contracts for a specified period of time, which generally will not exceed five years but may exceed five years or be permanent if warranted

by the circumstances, and terminate any or all existing Master Agreements Contractor may have with the County.

8.11.3 Non-responsible Contractor

The County may debar a Contractor if the Board finds, in its discretion, that Contractor has done any of the following: (a) violated a term of a Master Agreement with the County or a nonprofit corporation created by the County, (b) committed an act or omission which negatively reflects on Contractor's quality, fitness or capacity to perform a Master Agreement with the County, any other public entity, or a nonprofit corporation created by the County, or engaged in a pattern or practice which negatively reflects on same, (c) committed an act or offense which indicates a lack of business integrity or business honesty, or (d) made or submitted a false claim against the County or any other public entity.

8.11.4 Contractor Hearing Board

- a. If there is evidence that Contractor may be subject to debarment, the Department will notify Contractor in writing of the evidence which is the basis for the proposed debarment and will advise Contractor of the scheduled date for a debarment hearing before the Contractor Hearing Board.
- b. The Contractor Hearing Board will conduct a hearing where evidence on the proposed debarment is presented. Contractor and/or Contractor's representative will be given an opportunity to submit evidence at that hearing. After the hearing, the Contractor Hearing Board will prepare a tentative proposed decision, which will contain a recommendation regarding whether Contractor should be debarred, and, if so, the appropriate length of time of the debarment. Contractor and the Department will be provided an opportunity to object to the tentative proposed decision prior to its presentation to the Board.
- c. After consideration of any objections, or if no objections are submitted, a record of the hearing, the proposed decision, and any other recommendation of the Contractor Hearing Board will be presented to the Board. The Board will have the right to modify, deny, or adopt the proposed decision and recommendation of the Contractor Hearing Board.
- d. If a Contractor has been debarred for a period longer than five years, that Contractor may after the debarment has been in effect for at least five years, submit a written request for review of the debarment determination to reduce the period of debarment or terminate the debarment. The County may, in its discretion, reduce the period of debarment or terminate the debarment if it finds that Contractor has adequately demonstrated one or more of the following: (i) elimination of the grounds for which the debarment was imposed, (ii) a bona fide change in ownership or management, (iii) material evidence discovered after debarment was imposed, or (iv) any other reason that is in the best interests of the County.

- e. The Contractor Hearing Board will consider a request for review of a debarment determination only where: (i) Contractor has been debarred for a period longer than five years, (ii) the debarment has been in effect for at least five years, and (iii) the request is in writing, states one or more of the grounds for reduction of the debarment period or termination of the debarment, and includes supporting documentation. Upon receiving an appropriate request, the Contractor Hearing Board will provide notice of the hearing on the request. At the hearing, the Contractor Hearing Board will conduct a hearing where evidence on the proposed reduction of debarment period or termination of debarment is presented. This hearing will be conducted and the request for review decided by the Contractor Hearing Board pursuant to the same procedures as for a debarment hearing.
- f. The Contractor Hearing Board's proposed decision will contain a recommendation on the request to reduce the period of debarment or terminate the debarment. The Contractor Hearing Board will present its proposed decision and recommendation to the Board. The Board will have the right to modify, deny, or adopt the proposed decision and recommendation of the Contractor Hearing Board.

8.11.5 Subcontractors of Contractor

These terms will also apply to subcontractors of County Contractors.

8.12 Contractor's Acknowledgement of County's Commitment to Safely Surrendered Baby Law

Contractor acknowledges that the County places a high priority on the implementation of the Safely Surrendered Baby Law. Contractor understands that it is the County's policy to encourage all County contractors to voluntarily post Exhibit C (Safely Surrendered Baby Law) poster, to this Master Agreement, in a prominent position at the Contractor's place of business. Contractor must also encourage its subcontractors, if any, to post this poster in a prominent position in the subcontractor's place of business. Information and posters for printing are available at:

https://lacounty.gov/residents/family-services/child-safety/safe-surrender/.

8.13 Contractor's Warranty of Adherence to County's Child Support Compliance Program

- 8.13.1 Contractor acknowledges that the County has established a goal of ensuring that all individuals who benefit financially from the County through a Master Agreement are in compliance with their court-ordered child, family and spousal support obligations in order to mitigate the economic burden otherwise imposed upon the County and its taxpayers.
- 8.13.2 As required by the <u>County's Child Support Compliance Program (County Code Chapter 2.200)</u> and without limiting Contractor's duty under this Master Agreement to comply with all applicable provisions of law, Contractor warrants that it is now in compliance and will during the Term of this Master Agreement maintain compliance with employment and wage

reporting requirements as required by the Federal Social Security Act (42 USC Section 653a) and California Unemployment Insurance Code Section 1088.5, and will implement all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Withholding Orders or Child Support Services Department Notices of Wage and Earnings Assignment for Child, Family or Spousal Support, pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure Section 706.031 and Family Code Section 5246(b).

8.14 County's Quality Assurance Plan

The County or its agent(s) will monitor the Contractor's performance under this Master Agreement on not less than an annual basis. Such monitoring will include assessing the Contractor's compliance with all Master Agreement terms and conditions and performance standards. Contractor deficiencies which the County determines are significant or continuing and that may place performance of this Master Agreement in jeopardy if not corrected will be reported to the Board and listed in the appropriate Contractor performance database. The report to the Board will include improvement/corrective action measures taken by the County and Contractor. If improvement does not occur consistent with the corrective action measures, the County may terminate this Master Agreement or impose other penalties as specified in this Master Agreement.

8.15 Damage to County Facilities, Buildings or Grounds

- 8.15.1 Contractor must repair, or cause to be repaired, at its own cost, any and all damage to County facilities, buildings, or grounds caused by Contractor or employees or agents of Contractor. Such repairs must be made immediately after Contractor has become aware of such damage, but in no event later than 30 Days after the occurrence.
- 8.15.2 If Contractor fails to make timely repairs, the County may make any necessary repairs. All costs incurred by the County, as determined by the County, for such repairs must be repaid by Contractor by cash payment upon demand.

8.16 Employment Eligibility Verification

- 8.16.1 Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all federal and state statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing Work under this Master Agreement meet the citizenship or alien status requirements set forth in federal and state statutes and regulations. Contractor must obtain from all employees performing work hereunder, all verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by federal and state statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, (P.L. 99-603), or as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended. Contractor must retain all such documentation for all covered employees for the period prescribed by law.
- 8.16.2 Contractor must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless, the County, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed against Contractor or the County or both in connection with any alleged violation of any federal or state statutes or

regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing Work under this Master Agreement.

8.17 Counterparts and Electronic Signatures and Representations

- 8.17.1 This Master Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original but all of which together will constitute one and the same Master Agreement. The facsimile, email or electronic signature of the parties will be deemed to constitute original signatures, and facsimile or electronic copies hereof will be deemed to constitute duplicate originals.
- 8.17.2 The County and Contractor hereby agree to regard electronic representations of original signatures of authorized officers of each party, when appearing in appropriate places on the Amendments prepared pursuant to Paragraph 8.1 (Amendments and Change Notices) above and received via communications facilities (facsimile, email or electronic signature), as legally sufficient evidence that such legally binding signatures have been affixed to Amendments to this Master Agreement.

8.18 Fair Labor Standards

Contractor must comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and must indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County and its agents, officers, and employees from any and all liability, including, but not limited to, wages, overtime pay, liquidated damages, penalties, court costs, and attorneys' fees arising under any wage and hour law, including, but not limited to, the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act, for Work performed by Contractor's employees for which the County may be found jointly or solely liable.

8.19 Force Majeure

- 8.19.1 Neither party will be liable for such party's failure to perform its obligations under and in accordance with this Master Agreement, if such failure arises out of fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, other natural occurrences, strikes, lockouts (other than a lockout by such party or any of such party's subcontractors), civil disorders, freight embargoes, or other similar events to those described above, but in every such case the failure to perform must be totally beyond the control and without any fault or negligence of such party (such events are referred to in this Paragraph as "force majeure events").
- 8.19.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, a default by a subcontractor of Contractor will not constitute a force majeure event, unless such default arises out of causes beyond the control of both Contractor and such subcontractor, and without any fault or negligence of either of them. In such case, Contractor will not be liable for failure to perform, unless the goods or services to be furnished by the subcontractor were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit Contractor to meet the required performance schedule. As used in this Paragraph, the term "subcontractor" and "subcontractors" mean subcontractors at any tier.
- 8.19.3 In the event Contractor's failure to perform arises out of a force majeure event, Contractor agrees to use commercially reasonable best efforts to

obtain goods or services from other sources, if applicable, and to otherwise mitigate the damages and reduce the delay caused by such force majeure event.

8.20 Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue

This Master Agreement will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of California. Contractor agrees and consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California for all purposes regarding this Master Agreement and further agrees and consents that venue of any action brought hereunder will be exclusively in the County.

8.21 Independent Contractor Status

- 8.21.1 This Master Agreement is by and between the County and Contractor and is not intended, and must not be construed, to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association, as between the County and Contractor. The employees and agents of one party must not be, or be construed to be, the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever.
- 8.21.2 Contractor will be solely liable and responsible for providing to, or on behalf of, all persons performing Work pursuant to this Master Agreement all compensation and benefits. The County will have no liability or responsibility for the payment of any salaries, wages, unemployment benefits, disability benefits, federal, state, or local taxes, or other compensation, benefits, or taxes for any personnel provided by or on behalf of Contractor.
- 8.21.3 Contractor understands and agrees that all persons performing Work pursuant to this Master Agreement are, for purposes of Workers' Compensation liability, solely employees of Contractor and not employees of the County. Contractor will be solely liable and responsible for furnishing any and all Workers' Compensation benefits to any person as a result of any injuries arising from or connected with any Work performed by or on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement.
- 8.21.4 Contractor must adhere to the provisions stated in Paragraph 7.6 (Confidentiality) above of this Master Agreement.

8.22 Indemnification

Contractor must indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County, its Special Districts, elected and appointed officers, employees, agents and volunteers ("County Indemnitees") from and against any and all liability, including but not limited to demands, claims, actions, fees, costs and expenses (including attorney and expert witness fees), arising from and/or relating to this Master Agreement, except for such loss or damage arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the County Indemnitees.

8.23 General Provisions for all Insurance Coverage

Without limiting Contractor's indemnification of the County, and in the performance of this Master Agreement and until all of its obligations pursuant to this Master Agreement have been met, Contractor must provide and maintain at its own

expense insurance coverage satisfying the requirements specified in Paragraph 8.24 (Insurance Coverage) below of this Master Agreement. These minimum insurance coverage terms, types and limits (the "Required Insurance") also are in addition to and separate from any other contractual obligation imposed upon Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement. The County in no way warrants that the Required Insurance is sufficient to protect Contractor for liabilities which may arise from or relate to this Master Agreement.

8.23.1 Evidence of Coverage and Notice to County

- Certificate(s) of insurance coverage (Certificate) satisfactory to the County, and a copy of an Additional Insured endorsement confirming the County and its Agents (defined below) has been given Insured status under the Contractor's General Liability policy, must be delivered to the County at the address shown below and provided prior to commencing Services under this Master Agreement.
- Renewal Certificates must be provided to the County not less than ten Days prior to Contractor's policy expiration dates. The County reserves the right to obtain complete, certified copies of any required Contractor and/or subcontractor insurance policies at any time.
- Certificates must identify all Required Insurance coverage types and limits specified herein, reference this Master Agreement by name or number, and be signed by an authorized representative of the insurer(s). The Insured party named on the Certificate must match the name of the Contractor identified as the contracting party in this Master Agreement. Certificates must provide the full name of each insurer providing coverage, its NAIC (National Association of Insurance Commissioners) identification number, its financial rating, the amounts of any policy deductibles or self-insured retentions exceeding \$50,000.00 dollars, and list any County required endorsement forms.
- Neither the County's failure to obtain, nor the County's receipt of, or failure to object to a non-complying insurance certificate or endorsement, or any other insurance documentation or information provided by Contractor, its insurance broker(s) and/or insurer(s), will be construed as a waiver of any of the Required Insurance provisions.
- Certificates and copies of any required endorsements must be sent to the County Contract Compliance Manager listed in Exhibit A (County's Administration) to this Master Agreement.
- Contractor also must promptly report to the County any injury or property damage accident or incident, including any injury to a Contractor employee occurring on County property, and any loss, disappearance, destruction, misuse, or theft of County property, monies or securities entrusted to Contractor. Contractor also must promptly notify the County of any third-party claim or suit filed against Contractor or any of its subcontractors which arises from or relates to this Master Agreement, and could result in the filing of a claim or lawsuit against Contractor and/or the County.

8.23.2 Additional Insured Status and Scope of Coverage

The County, its Special Districts, Elected Officials, Officers, Agents, Employees and Volunteers (collectively County and its Agents) must be provided additional insured status under Contractor's General Liability policy with respect to liability arising out of Contractor's ongoing and completed operations performed on behalf of the County. The County and its Agents additional insured status must apply with respect to liability and defense of suits arising out of Contractor's acts or omissions, whether such liability is attributable to the Contractor or to the County. The full policy limits and scope of protection also must apply to the County and its Agents as an additional insured, even if they exceed the County's minimum Required Insurance specifications herein. Use of an automatic additional insured endorsement form is acceptable providing it satisfies the Required Insurance provisions herein.

8.23.3 Cancellation of or Changes in Insurance

Contractor must provide the County with, or Contractor's insurance policies must contain a provision that the County will receive, written notice of cancellation or any change in Required Insurance, including insurer, limits of coverage, term of coverage or policy period. The written notice must be provided to the County at least ten Days in advance of cancellation for non-payment of premium and thirty 30 Days in advance for any other cancellation or policy change. Failure to provide written notice of cancellation or any change in Required Insurance may constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement, in the sole discretion of the County, upon which the County may suspend or terminate this Master Agreement.

8.23.4 Failure to Maintain Insurance

Contractor's failure to maintain or to provide acceptable evidence that it maintains the Required Insurance will constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement, upon which the County immediately may withhold payments due to Contractor, and/or suspend or terminate this Master Agreement. The County, at its sole discretion, may obtain damages from Contractor resulting from said breach. Alternatively, the County may purchase the Required Insurance, and without further notice to Contractor, deduct the premium cost from sums due to Contractor or pursue Contractor reimbursement.

8.23.5 Insurer Financial Ratings

Coverage must be placed with insurers acceptable to the County with A.M. Best ratings of not less than A:VII unless otherwise approved by the County.

8.23.6 Contractor's Insurance Must Be Primary

Contractor's insurance policies, with respect to any claims related to this Master Agreement, must be primary with respect to all other sources of coverage available to Contractor. Any County maintained insurance or

self-insurance coverage must be in excess of and not contribute to any Contractor coverage.

8.23.7 Waivers of Subrogation

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby waives its rights and its insurer(s)' rights of recovery against the County under all the Required Insurance for any loss arising from or relating to this Master Agreement. Contractor must require its insurers to execute any waiver of subrogation endorsements which may be necessary to effect such waiver.

8.23.8 Subcontractor Insurance Coverage Requirements

Contractor must include all subcontractors as insureds under Contractor's own policies, or must provide the County with each subcontractor's separate evidence of insurance coverage. Contractor will be responsible for verifying each subcontractor complies with the Required Insurance provisions herein, and must require that each subcontractor name the County and Contractor as additional insureds on the subcontractor's general liability policy. Contractor must obtain the County's prior review and approval of any subcontractor request for modification of the Required Insurance.

8.23.9 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions (SIRs)

Contractor's policies must not obligate the County to pay any portion of any Contractor deductible or SIR. The County retains the right to require Contractor to reduce or eliminate policy deductibles and SIRs as respects the County, or to provide a bond guaranteeing Contractor's payment of all deductibles and SIRs, including all related claims investigation, administration and defense expenses. Such bond must be executed by a corporate surety licensed to transact business in the State of California.

8.23.10 Claims Made Coverage

If any part of the Required Insurance is written on a claims-made basis, any policy retroactive date will precede the effective date of this Master Agreement. Contractor understands and agrees it will maintain such coverage for a period of not less than three years following Master Agreement expiration, termination or cancellation.

8.23.11 Application of Excess Liability Coverage

Contractors may use a combination of primary, and excess insurance policies which provide coverage as broad as ("follow form" over) the underlying primary policies, to satisfy the Required Insurance provisions.

8.23.12 Separation of Insureds

All liability policies must provide cross-liability coverage as would be afforded by the standard ISO (Insurance Services Office, Inc.) separation of insureds provision with no insured versus insured exclusions or limitations.

8.23.13 Alternative Risk Financing Programs

The County reserves the right to review, and then approve, Contractor use of self-insurance, risk retention groups, risk purchasing groups, pooling arrangements and captive insurance to satisfy the Required Insurance provisions. The County and its Agents must be designated as an Additional Covered Party under any approved program.

8.23.14 County Review and Approval of Insurance Requirements

The County reserves the right to review and adjust the Required Insurance provisions, conditioned upon the County's determination of changes in risk exposures.

8.24 Insurance Coverage

8.24.1 Commercial General Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form CG 00 01), naming the County and its Agents as an additional insured, with limits of not less than:

General Aggregate: \$2 million
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate: \$1 million
Personal and Advertising Injury: \$1 million
Each Occurrence: \$1 million

- **8.24.2** Automobile Liability insurance (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form CA 00 01) with limits of not less than \$1 million for bodily injury and property damage, in combined or equivalent split limits, for each single accident. Insurance must cover liability arising out of Contractor's use of autos pursuant to this Master Agreement, including owned, leased, hired, and/or non-owned autos, as each may be applicable.
- 8.24.3 Workers Compensation and Employers' Liability insurance or qualified self- insurance satisfying statutory requirements, which includes Employers' Liability coverage with limits of not less than \$1 million per accident. If Contractor will provide leased employees, or is an employee leasing or temporary staffing firm or a professional employer organization (PEO), coverage also must include an Alternate Employer Endorsement (providing scope of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form WC 00 03 01 A) naming the County as the Alternate Employer. The written notice must be provided to the County at least 10 Days in advance of cancellation for non-payment of premium and 30 Days in advance for any other cancellation or policy change. If applicable to Contractor's operations, coverage also must be arranged to satisfy the requirements of any federal workers or workmen's compensation law or any federal occupational disease law.

8.24.4 Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions

Insurance covering Contractor's liability arising from or related to this Master Agreement, with limits of not less than \$1 million per claim and \$2 million aggregate. Further, Contractor understands and agrees it must

maintain such coverage for a period of not less than three years following this Master Agreement's expiration, termination or cancellation.

8.25 Liquidated Damages

- 8.25.1 If, in the judgment of County Project Director, Contractor is deemed to be non-compliant with the terms and obligations assumed hereby, County Project Director, at their option, in addition to, or in lieu of, other remedies provided herein, may withhold the entire monthly payment or deduct pro rata from Contractor's invoice for Work not performed. A description of the Work not performed and the amount to be withheld or deducted from payments to Contractor from the County, will be forwarded to Contractor by County Project Director, in a written notice describing the reasons for said action.
- 8.25.2 If County Project Director determines that there are deficiencies in the performance of this Master Agreement that County Project Director deems are correctable by Contractor over a certain time span, County Project Director will provide written notice to Contractor to correct the deficiency within specified time frames. Should Contractor fail to correct deficiencies within said time frame, County Project Director may:
 - a. Deduct from Contractor's payment those applicable portions of the invoice, and/or
 - b. Deduct liquidated damages. The parties agree that it will be impracticable or extremely difficult to fix the extent of actual damages resulting from the failure of Contractor to correct a deficiency within the specified time frame. The parties hereby agree that, under the current circumstances, a reasonable estimate of such damages is \$100 per Day per infraction and that Contractor will be liable to the County for liquidated damages in said amount. Said amount will be deducted from the County's payment to Contractor, and/or
 - c. Upon giving five Days' notice to Contractor for failure to correct the deficiencies, the County may correct any and all deficiencies. The total costs incurred by the County for completion of the Work by an alternate source, whether it be County forces or separate private contractor, will be deducted and forfeited from the payment to Contractor from the County, as determined by the County.
- 8.25.3 The action noted in Paragraph 8.25.2 above will not be construed as a penalty, but as adjustment of payment to Contractor to recover the County cost due to the failure of Contractor to complete or comply with the provisions of this Master Agreement.
- 8.25.4 This Paragraph will not, in any manner, restrict or limit the County's right to damages for any breach of this Master Agreement provided by law or Paragraph 8.25.2 above, and will not, in any manner, restrict or limit the County's right to terminate this Master Agreement as agreed to herein.

8.26 Most Favored Public Entity

If Contractor's prices decline or should Contractor at any time during the Term of this Master Agreement provide the same goods or Services under similar quantity and delivery conditions to the State of California or any county, municipality, or district of the State at prices below those set forth in this Master Agreement, then such lower prices will be immediately extended to the County.

8.27 Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action

- 8.27.1 Contractor certifies and agrees that all persons employed by it, its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding companies are and will be treated equally without regard to or because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, or political affiliation, in compliance with all applicable federal and state anti-discrimination laws and regulations.
- 8.27.2 Contractor certifies to the County each of the following:
 - a. That Contractor has a written policy statement prohibiting discrimination in all phases of employment.
 - b. That Contractor periodically conducts a self-analysis or utilization analysis of its work force.
 - c. That Contractor has a system for determining if its employment practices are discriminatory against protected groups.
 - d. Where problem areas are identified in employment practices, Contractor has a system for taking reasonable corrective action, to include establishment of goals or timetables.
- 8.27.3 Contractor must take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, or political affiliation, in compliance with all applicable federal and state anti-discrimination laws and regulations. Such action must include, but is not limited to employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- 8.27.4 Contractor certifies and agrees that it will deal with its subcontractors, bidders, or vendors without regard to or because of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, or political affiliation.
- 8.27.5 Contractor certifies and agrees that it, its affiliates, subsidiaries, or holding companies will comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations to the end that no person will, on the grounds of race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, marital status, or political affiliation, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Master Agreement or under any project, program, or activity supported by this Master Agreement.

- 8.27.6 Contractor must allow the County representatives access to Contractor's employment records during regular business hours to verify compliance with the provisions of this Paragraph 8.27 (Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action) when so requested by the County.
- 8.27.7 If the County finds that any provisions of this Paragraph 8.27 (Nondiscrimination and Affirmative Action) have been violated, such violation will constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement upon which the County may terminate or suspend this Master Agreement. While the County reserves the right to determine independently that the anti-discrimination provisions of this Master Agreement have been violated, in addition, a determination by the California Fair Employment and Housing Commission or the Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission that Contractor has violated federal or state anti-discrimination laws or regulations will constitute a finding by the County that Contractor has violated the anti-discrimination provisions of this Master Agreement.
- 8.27.8 The parties agree that in the event Contractor violates any of the anti-discrimination provisions of this Master Agreement, the County will, at its sole option, be entitled to the sum of \$500 for each such violation pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1671 as liquidated damages in lieu of terminating or suspending this Master Agreement.

8.28 Non Exclusivity

Nothing herein is intended nor will be construed as creating any exclusive arrangement with Contractor. This Master Agreement will not restrict the Department from acquiring similar, equal or like goods and/or services from other entities or sources.

8.29 Notice of Delays

Except as otherwise provided under this Master Agreement, when either party has knowledge that any actual or potential situation is delaying or threatens to delay the timely performance of this Master Agreement, that party must, within one Business Day, give notice thereof, including all relevant information with respect thereto, to the other party.

8.30 Notice of Disputes

Contractor must bring to the attention of County Project Manager any dispute between the County and Contractor regarding the performance of Services as stated in this Master Agreement. If County Project Manager is not able to resolve the dispute, the Sheriff, or his designee will resolve it.

8.31 Notice to Employees Regarding the Federal Earned Income Credit

Contractor must notify its employees, and will require each subcontractor to notify its employees, that they may be eligible for the Federal Earned Income Credit under the federal income tax laws. Such notice must be provided in accordance with the requirements set forth in Internal Revenue Service Notice No. 1015.

8.32 Notice to Employees Regarding the Safely Surrendered Baby Law

Contractor must notify and provide to its employees, and will require each subcontractor to notify and provide to its employees, information regarding the Safely Surrendered Baby Law, its implementation in the County, and where and how to safely surrender a baby. The information is set forth in Exhibit C (Safely Surrendered Baby Law) to this Master Agreement. Additional information is available at:

https://lacounty.gov/residents/family-services/child-safety/safe-surrender/.

8.33 Notices

All notices or demands required or permitted to be given or made under this Master Agreement must be in writing and will be hand delivered with signed receipt or mailed by first-class registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the parties as identified in Exhibit A (County's Administration) and Exhibit B (Contractor's Administration) to this Master Agreement. Addresses may be changed by either party giving ten Days prior written notice thereof to the other party. County Project Director will have the authority to issue all notices or demands required or permitted by the County under this Master Agreement.

8.34 Prohibition Against Inducement or Persuasion

Notwithstanding the above, Contractor and the County agree that, during the Term of this Master Agreement and for a period of one year thereafter, neither party will in any way intentionally induce or persuade any employee of one party to become an employee or agent of the other party. No bar exists against any hiring action initiated through a public announcement.

8.35 Public Records Act

- 8.35.1 Any documents submitted by Contractor; all information obtained in connection with the County's right to audit and inspect Contractor's documents, books, and accounting records pursuant to Paragraph 8.37 (Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement) below, as well as those documents which were required to be submitted in response to the RFSQ used in the solicitation process for this Master Agreement, become the exclusive property of the County. All such documents become a matter of public record and will be regarded as public records. Exceptions will be those elements in the California Government Code Section 7921 et seq. (Public Records Act) and which are marked "trade secret," "confidential," or "proprietary." The County will not in any way be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any such records including, without limitation, those so marked, if disclosure is required by law, or by an order issued by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- 8.35.2 In the event the County is required to defend an action on a Public Records Act request for any of the aforementioned documents, information, books, records, and/or contents of an SOQ marked "trade secret," "confidential," or "proprietary," Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify the County from all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, in action or liability arising under the Public Records Act.

8.36 Publicity

- 8.36.1 Contractor must not disclose any details in connection with this Master Agreement to any person or entity except as may be otherwise provided hereunder or required by law. However, in recognizing Contractor's need to identify its services and related clients to sustain itself, the County will not inhibit Contractor from publishing its role under this Master Agreement within the following conditions:
 - Contractor must develop all publicity material in a professional manner, and
 - During the Term of this Master Agreement, Contractor must not, and must not authorize another to, publish or disseminate any commercial advertisements, press releases, feature articles, or other materials using the name of the County without the prior written consent of County Project Director. The County will not unreasonably withhold written consent.
- 8.36.2 Contractor may, without the prior written consent of the County, indicate in its proposals and sales materials that it has been awarded this Master Agreement with the County, provided that the requirements of this Paragraph 8.36 (Publicity) will apply.

8.37 Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement

Contractor must maintain accurate and complete financial records of its activities and operations relating to this Master Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Contractor must also maintain accurate and complete employment and other records relating to its performance of this Master Agreement. Contractor agrees that the County, or its authorized representatives, will have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, copy, or transcribe any pertinent transaction, activity, or record relating to this Master Agreement. All such material, including, but not limited to, all financial records, bank statements, cancelled checks or other proof of payment, timecards, sign-in/sign-out sheets and other time and employment records, and proprietary data and information, will be kept and maintained by Contractor and will be made available to the County during the Term of this Master Agreement and for a period of five years thereafter unless the County's written permission is given to dispose of any such material prior to such time. All such material must be maintained by Contractor at a location in the County, provided that if any such material is located outside the County, then, at the County's option, Contractor must pay the County for travel, per diem, and other costs incurred by the County to examine, audit, excerpt, copy, or transcribe such material at such other location.

8.37.1 In the event that an audit of Contractor is conducted specifically regarding this Master Agreement by any federal or state auditor, or by any auditor or accountant employed by Contractor or otherwise, then Contractor must file a copy of such audit report with the County's Auditor-Controller within 30 Days of Contractor's receipt thereof, unless otherwise provided by applicable federal or state law or under this Master Agreement. The County will make a reasonable effort to maintain the confidentiality of such audit report(s).

- 8.37.2 Failure on the part of Contractor to comply with any of the provisions of this Paragraph 8.37 (Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement) will constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement upon which the County may terminate or suspend this Master Agreement.
- If, at any time during the Term of this Master Agreement or within five years 8.37.3 after the expiration or termination of this Master Agreement, representatives of the County may conduct an audit of Contractor regarding the Work performed under this Master Agreement, and if such audit finds that the County's dollar liability for any such Work is less than payments made by the County to Contractor, then the difference will be either: (a) repaid by Contractor to the County by cash payment upon demand or (b) at the sole option of the County's Auditor-Controller, deducted from any amounts due to Contractor from the County, whether under this Master Agreement or otherwise. If such audit finds that the County's dollar liability for such Work is more than the payments made by the County to Contractor, then the difference will be paid to Contractor by the County by cash payment, provided that in no event will the County's maximum obligation for this Master Agreement exceed the funds appropriated by the County for the purpose of this Master Agreement.

8.38 Recycled Bond Paper

Consistent with the Board's policy to reduce the amount of solid waste deposited at the County landfills, Contractor agrees to use recycled-content paper to the maximum extent possible on this Master Agreement.

8.39 Subcontracting

- 8.39.1 The requirements of this Master Agreement may not be subcontracted by Contractor without the advance approval of the County. Any attempt by Contractor to subcontract without the prior consent of the County may be deemed a material breach of this Master Agreement.
- 8.39.2 If Contractor desires to subcontract, Contractor must provide the following information promptly at the County's request:
 - a. A description of the Work to be performed by the subcontractor,
 - b. A draft copy of the proposed subcontract, and
 - c. Other pertinent information and/or certifications requested by the County.
- 8.39.3 Contractor must indemnify and hold the County harmless with respect to the activities of each and every subcontractor in the same manner and to the same degree as if such subcontractor(s) were Contractor employees.
- 8.39.4 Contractor will remain fully responsible for all performances required of it under this Master Agreement, including those that Contractor has determined to subcontract, notwithstanding the County's approval of Contractor's proposed subcontract.
- 8.39.5 The County's consent to subcontract will not waive the County's right to prior and continuing approval of any and all personnel, including

- subcontractor employees, providing Services under this Master Agreement. Contractor must notify its subcontractors of this County right.
- 8.39.6 County Project Director is authorized to act for and on behalf of the County with respect to approval of any subcontract and subcontractor employees. After approval of the subcontract by the County, Contractor must forward a fully executed subcontract to the County for their files.
- 8.39.7 Contractor will be solely liable and responsible for all payments or other compensation to all subcontractors and their officers, employees, agents, and successors in interest arising through Services performed hereunder, notwithstanding the County's consent to subcontract.
- 8.39.8 Contractor must obtain certificates of insurance, which establish that the subcontractor maintains all the programs of insurance required by the County from each approved subcontractor. Contractor must ensure delivery of all such documents to County Contract Compliance Manager as listed in Exhibit A (County's Administration) to this Master Agreement, before any subcontractor employee may perform any Work hereunder.

8.40 Termination for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with County's Child Support Compliance Program

Failure of the Contractor to maintain compliance with the requirements set forth in Paragraph 8.13 (Contractor's Warranty of Adherence to County's Child Support Compliance Program) above will constitute a default under this Master Agreement. Without limiting the rights and remedies available to the County under any other provision of this Master Agreement, failure of Contractor to cure such default within 90 Days of written notice will be grounds upon which the County may terminate this Master Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 8.42 (Termination for Default) below and pursue debarment of Contractor, pursuant to County Code Chapter 2.202.

8.41 Termination for Convenience

- 8.41.1 The County may terminate this Master Agreement, and any Work issued hereunder, in whole or in part, from time to time or permanently, when such action is deemed by the County, in its sole discretion, to be in its best interest. Termination of Work hereunder will be effected by notice of termination to Contractor specifying the extent to which performance of Work is terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective. The date upon which such termination becomes effective will be no less than ten Days after the notice is sent.
- 8.41.2 Upon receipt of a notice of termination and except as otherwise directed by the County, Contractor must immediately:
 - a. Stop Work under this Master Agreement, as identified in such notice,
 - b. Transfer title and deliver to the County all completed Work and Work in process, and
 - c. Complete performance of such part of the Work as would not have been terminated by such notice.

8.41.3 All material including books, records, documents, or other evidence bearing on the costs and expenses of Contractor under this Master Agreement must be maintained by Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 8.37 (Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement) above.

8.42 Termination for Default

- 8.42.1 The County may, by written notice to Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this Master Agreement, if, in the judgment of County Project Director:
 - a. Contractor has materially breached this Master Agreement,
 - Contractor fails to timely provide and/or satisfactorily perform any task, deliverable, Service, or other Work required either under this Master Agreement, or
 - c. Contractor fails to demonstrate a high probability of timely fulfillment of performance requirements of any Work issued under this Master Agreement, or of any obligations of this Master Agreement and in either case, fails to demonstrate convincing progress toward a cure within five Business Days (or such longer period as the County may authorize in writing) after receipt of written notice from the County specifying such failure.
- 8.42.2 In the event that the County terminates this Master Agreement in whole or in part as provided in Paragraph 8.42.1 above, the County may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as the County may deem appropriate, goods and services similar to those so terminated. Contractor will be liable to the County for any and all excess costs incurred by the County, as determined by the County, for such similar goods and services. Contractor will continue the performance of this Master Agreement to the extent not terminated under the provisions of this Paragraph 8.42 (Termination for Default).
- 8.42.3 Except with respect to defaults of any subcontractor, Contractor will not be liable for any such excess costs of the type identified in Paragraph 8.42.2 above if its failure to perform this Master Agreement, including any Work issued hereunder, arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of Contractor. Such causes may include, but are not limited to: acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of the County in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, acts of federal or state governments in their sovereign capacities, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather; provided that in every case, the failure to perform must be beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of Contractor. If the failure to perform is caused by the default of a subcontractor, and if such default arises out of causes beyond the control of both Contractor and subcontractor, and without the fault or negligence of either of them, Contractor will not be liable for any such excess costs for failure to perform, unless the goods or services to be furnished by the subcontractor were obtainable from other sources in sufficient time to permit Contractor to meet the required performance schedule. As used in this Paragraph 8.42.3, the

- terms "subcontractor" and "subcontractors" mean subcontractor(s) at any tier.
- 8.42.4 If, after the County has given notice of termination under the provisions of this Paragraph 8.42 (Termination for Default), it is determined by the County that Contractor was not in default under the provisions of this Paragraph 8.42 (Termination for Default), or that the default was excusable under the provisions of Paragraph 8.42.3 above, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Paragraph 8.41 (Termination for Convenience) above.
- 8.42.5 The rights and remedies of the County provided in this Paragraph 8.42 (Termination for Default) will not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Master Agreement.

8.43 Termination for Improper Consideration

- 8.43.1 The County may, by written notice to Contractor, immediately terminate the right of Contractor to proceed under this Master Agreement if it is found that consideration, in any form, was offered or given by Contractor, either directly or through an intermediary, to any County officer, employee, or agent with the intent of securing this Master Agreement or securing favorable treatment with respect to the award, amendment, or extension of this Master Agreement or the making of any determinations with respect to Contractor's performance pursuant to this Master Agreement. In the event of such termination, the County will be entitled to pursue the same remedies against Contractor as it could pursue in the event of default by Contractor.
- 8.43.2 Contractor must immediately report any attempt by a County officer, employee, or agent to solicit such improper consideration. The report must be made either to the County manager charged with supervision of the employee or to the Los Angeles County Fraud Hotline at (800) 544-6861 or https://fraud.lacounty.gov/.
- 8.43.3 Among other items, such improper consideration may take the form of cash, discounts, services, the provision of travel or entertainment, or tangible gifts.

8.44 Termination for Insolvency

- 8.44.1 The County may terminate this Master Agreement forthwith in the event of the occurrence of any of the following:
 - a. Insolvency of Contractor. Contractor will be deemed to be insolvent if it has ceased to pay its debts for at least 60 Days in the ordinary course of business or cannot pay its debts as they become due, whether or not a petition has been filed under the Federal Bankruptcy Code and whether or not Contractor is insolvent within the meaning of the Federal Bankruptcy Code.
 - b. The filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition regarding Contractor under the Federal Bankruptcy Code,
 - c. The appointment of a Receiver or Trustee for Contractor, or

- d. The execution by Contractor of a general assignment for the benefit of creditors.
- 8.44.2 The rights and remedies of the County provided in this Paragraph 8.44 (Termination for Insolvency) will not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Master Agreement.

8.45 Termination for Non-Adherence of County Lobbyist Ordinance

Contractor, and each County Lobbyist or County Lobbying firm as defined in County Code Section 2.160.010 retained by Contractor, must fully comply with the County's Lobbyist Ordinance, County Code Section 2.160.010. Failure on the part of Contractor or any County Lobbyist or County Lobbying firm retained by Contractor to fully comply with the County's Lobbyist Ordinance will constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement, upon which the County may in its sole discretion, immediately terminate or suspend this Master Agreement.

8.46 Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Master Agreement, the County will not be obligated for Contractor's performance hereunder or by any provision of this Master Agreement during any of the County's future fiscal years unless and until the Board appropriates funds for this Master Agreement in the County's Budget for each such future fiscal year. In the event that funds are not appropriated for this Master Agreement, then this Master Agreement will terminate as of June 30 of the last fiscal year for which funds were appropriated. The County will notify Contractor in writing of any such non-allocation of funds at the earliest possible date.

8.47 Validity

If any provision of this Master Agreement or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder of this Master Agreement and the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances will not be affected thereby.

8.48 Waiver

No waiver by the County of any breach of any provision of this Master Agreement will constitute a waiver of any other breach or of such provision. Failure of the County to enforce at any time, or from time to time, any provision of this Master Agreement will not be construed as a waiver thereof. The rights and remedies set forth in this Paragraph 8.48 will not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Master Agreement.

8.49 Warranty Against Contingent Fees

- 8.49.1 Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Master Agreement upon any agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by Contractor for the purpose of securing business.
- 8.49.2 For breach of this warranty, the County will have the right to terminate this Master Agreement and, at its sole discretion, deduct from the Master

Agreement price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

8.50 Warranty of Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program

- 8.50.1 Contractor acknowledges that the County has established a goal of ensuring that all individuals and businesses that benefit financially from the County through contract are current in paying their property tax obligations (secured and unsecured roll) in order to mitigate the economic burden otherwise imposed upon the County and its taxpayers.
- 8.50.2 Unless Contractor qualifies for an exemption or exclusion, Contractor warrants and certifies that to the best of its knowledge it is now in compliance, and during the Term of this Master Agreement will maintain compliance, with <u>Los Angeles County Code Chapter 2.206</u>.

8.51 Termination for Breach of Warranty to Maintain Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program

Failure of Contractor to maintain compliance with the requirements set forth in Paragraph 8.50 (Warranty of Compliance with County's Defaulted Property Tax Reduction Program) above will constitute default under this Master Agreement. Without limiting the rights and remedies available to the County under any other provision of this Master Agreement, failure of Contractor to cure such default within 10 Days of notice will be grounds upon which the County may terminate this Master Agreement and/or pursue debarment of Contractor, pursuant to Los Angeles County Code Chapter 2.206.

8.52 Time off For Voting

Contractor must notify its employees, and must require each subcontractor to notify and provide to its employees, information regarding the time off for voting law (<u>Elections Code Section 14000</u>). Not less than ten Days before every statewide election, every Contractor and subcontractors must keep posted conspicuously at the place of work, if practicable, or elsewhere where it can be seen as employees come or go to their place of work, a notice setting forth the provisions of <u>Section 14000</u>.

8.53 Compliance with County's Zero Tolerance Policy on Human Trafficking

Contractor acknowledges that the County has established a Zero Tolerance Policy on Human Trafficking prohibiting Contractors from engaging in human trafficking.

If a Contractor or member of Contractor's staff is convicted of a human trafficking offense, the County will require that Contractor or member of Contractor's staff be removed immediately from performing Services under this Master Agreement. The County will not be under any obligation to disclose confidential information regarding the offenses other than those required by law.

Disqualification of any member of Contractor's staff pursuant to this Paragraph 8.53 will not relieve Contractor of its obligation to complete all Work in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Master Agreement.

8.54 Intentionally Omitted

8.55 Compliance with Fair Chance Employment Hiring Practices

Contractor, and its subcontractors, must comply with fair chance employment hiring practices set forth in <u>California Government Code Section 12952</u>, Contractor's violation of this Paragraph 8.55 may constitute a material breach of this Master Agreement. In the event of such material breach, the County may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Master Agreement.

8.56 Compliance with the County Policy of Equity

Contractor acknowledges that the County takes its commitment to preserving the dignity and professionalism of the workplace very seriously, as set forth in the County Policy of Equity (CPOE) (https://ceop.lacounty.gov/). Contractor further acknowledges that the County strives to provide a workplace free from discrimination, harassment, retaliation and inappropriate conduct based on a protected characteristic, and which may violate the CPOE. Contractor, its employees and subcontractors acknowledge and certify receipt and understanding of the CPOE. Failure of Contractor, its employees or its subcontractors to uphold the County's expectations of a workplace free from harassment and discrimination, including inappropriate conduct based on a protected characteristic, may subject the contractor to termination of contractual agreements as well as civil liability.

8.57 Prohibition from Participation in Future Solicitation(s)

A Vendor, or a Contractor or its subsidiary or subcontractor ("Vendor/Contractor"), is prohibited from submitting a SOQ in a County solicitation if Vendor/Contractor has provided advice or consultation for the solicitation. A Vendor/Contractor is also prohibited from submitting a bid or proposal in a County solicitation if Vendor/Contractor has developed or prepared any of the solicitation materials on behalf of the County. A violation of this provision will result in the disqualification of Contractor/Vendor from participation in the County solicitation or the termination or cancellation of any resultant County Master Agreement.

8.58 Injury and Illness Prevention Program

Contractor will be required to comply with the State of California's Cal OSHA's regulations. California Code of Regulations Title 8 Section 3203 requires all California employers to have a written, effective Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) that addresses hazards pertaining to the particular workplace covered by the program.

8.59 Campaign Contribution Prohibition Following Final Decision in Master Agreement Proceeding

Pursuant to <u>Government Code Section 84308</u>, Contractor and its subcontractors, are prohibited from making a contribution of more than \$500 to a County officer for 12 months after the date of the final decision in the proceeding involving this Master Agreement. Failure to comply with the provisions of <u>Government Code Section 84308</u> and of this Paragraph 8.59, may be a material breach of this Master Agreement as determined in the sole discretion of the County.

9.0 UNIQUE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 9.1 Intentionally Omitted
- 9.2 Intentionally Omitted
- 9.3 Intentionally Omitted
- 9.4 Intentionally Omitted
- 9.5 Intentionally Omitted
- 9.6 Local Small Business Enterprise (LSBE) Preference Program (If Applicable)
 - 9.6.1 This Master Agreement is subject to the provisions of the County's ordinance entitled LSBE Preference Program, as codified in Chapter 2.204 of the Los Angeles County Code.
 - 9.6.2 Contractor must not knowingly and with the intent to defraud, fraudulently obtain, retain, attempt to obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently obtaining or retaining or attempting to obtain or retain certification as a LSBE.
 - 9.6.3 Contractor must not willfully and knowingly make a false statement with the intent to defraud, whether by affidavit, report, or other representation, to a County official or employee for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial of certification of any entity as a LSBE.
 - 9.6.4 If Contractor has obtained certification as a LSBE by reason of having furnished incorrect supporting information or by reason of having withheld information, and which knew, or should have known, the information furnished was incorrect or the information withheld was relevant to its request for certification, and which by reason of such certification has been awarded this Master Agreement to which it would not otherwise have been entitled, Contractor must:
 - a. Pay to the County any difference between this Master Agreement amount and what the County's costs would have been if this Master Agreement had been properly awarded,
 - b. In addition to the amount described in subdivision (a) above, Contractor will be assessed a penalty in an amount of not more than ten percent of the amount of this Master Agreement, and
 - Be subject to the provisions of <u>Chapter 2.202 of the Los Angeles</u> <u>County Code</u> (Determinations of Contractor Non-responsibility and Contractor Debarment).

The above penalties will also apply to any business that has previously obtained proper certification, however, as a result of a change in their status would no longer be eligible for certification and fails to notify the State and the Department of Consumer and Business Affairs of this information prior to responding to a solicitation or accepting a Master Agreement award.

9.7 Social Enterprise (SE) Preference Program (If Applicable)

- 9.7.1 This Master Agreement is subject to the provisions of the County's ordinance entitled SE Preference Program, as codified in Chapter 2.205 of the Los Angeles County Code.
- 9.7.2 Contractor must not knowingly and with the intent to defraud, fraudulently obtain, retain, attempt to obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently obtaining or retaining or attempting to obtain or retain certification as a SE.
- 9.7.3 Contractor must not willfully and knowingly make a false statement with the intent to defraud, whether by affidavit, report, or other representation, to a County official or employee for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial of certification of any entity as a SE.
- 9.7.4 If Contractor has obtained County certification as a SE by reason of having furnished incorrect supporting information or by reason of having withheld information, and which knew, or should have known, the information furnished was incorrect or the information withheld was relevant to its request for certification, and which by reason of such certification has been awarded this Master Agreement to which it would not otherwise have been entitled. Contractor must:
 - a. Pay to the County any difference between this Master Agreement amount and what the County's costs would have been if this Master Agreement had been properly awarded,
 - In addition to the amount described in subdivision (a) above,
 Contractor will be assessed a penalty in an amount of not more than ten percent of the amount of this Master Agreement, and
 - Be subject to the provisions of <u>Chapter 2.202 of the Los Angeles</u> <u>County Code</u> (Determinations of Contractor Non-responsibility and Contractor Debarment).

The above penalties will also apply to any entity that has previously obtained proper certification, however, as a result of a change in their status would no longer be eligible for certification, and fails to notify the Department of Consumer and Business Affairs of this information prior to responding to a solicitation or accepting a Master Agreement award.

9.8 Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) Preference Program (If Applicable)

- 9.8.1 This Master Agreement is subject to the provisions of the County's ordinance entitled DVBE Preference Program, as codified in Chapter 2.211 of the Los Angeles County Code.
- 9.8.2 Contractor must not knowingly and with the intent to defraud, fraudulently obtain, retain, attempt to obtain or retain, or aid another in fraudulently obtaining or retaining or attempting to obtain or retain certification as a DVBE.
- 9.8.3 Contractor must not willfully and knowingly make a false statement with the intent to defraud, whether by affidavit, report, or other representation,

to a County official or employee for the purpose of influencing the certification or denial of certification of any entity as a DVBE.

- 9.8.4 If Contractor has obtained certification as a DVBE by reason of having furnished incorrect supporting information or by reason of having withheld information, and which knew, or should have known, the information furnished was incorrect or the information withheld was relevant to its request for certification, and which by reason of such certification has been awarded this Master Agreement to which it would not otherwise have been entitled, Contractor must:
 - a. Pay to the County any difference between this Master Agreement amount and what the County's costs would have been if this Master Agreement had been properly awarded,
 - b. In addition to the amount described in subdivision (a) above, Contractor will be assessed a penalty in an amount of not more than ten percent of the amount of this Master Agreement, and
 - Be subject to the provisions of <u>Chapter 2.202 of the Los Angeles</u> <u>County Code</u> (Determinations of Contractor Non-responsibility and Contractor Debarment).

Notwithstanding any other remedies in this Master Agreement, the above penalties will also apply to any business that has previously obtained proper certification, however, as a result of a change in their status would no longer be eligible for certification, and fails to notify the State and the Department of Consumer and Business Affairs of this information prior to responding to a solicitation or accepting a Master Agreement award.

10.0 Survival

In addition to any terms and conditions of this Master Agreement that expressly survive expiration or termination of this Master Agreement by their terms, the following provisions will survive the expiration or termination of this Master Agreement for any reason:

Paragraph 1.0	(Applicable Documents)							
Paragraph 2.0	(Definitions)							
Paragraph 3.0	(Work)							
Paragraph 5.4	(No Payment for Services Provided Following Expiration/Termination of Master Agreement)							
Paragraph 7.6	(Confidentiality)							
Paragraph 8.1	(Amendments and Change Notices)							
Paragraph 8.2	(Assignment and Delegation/Mergers or Acquisitions)							
Paragraph 8.18	(Fair Labor Standards)							
Paragraph 8.19	(Force Majeure)							
Paragraph 8.20	(Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue)							
Paragraph 8.22	(Indemnification)							

Paragraph 8.23	(General Provisions for all Insurance Coverage)
Paragraph 8.24	(Insurance Coverage)
Paragraph 8.25	(Liquidated Damages)
Paragraph 8.33	(Notices)
Paragraph 8.37	(Record Retention and Inspection-Audit Settlement)
Paragraph 8.41	(Termination for Convenience)
Paragraph 8.42	(Termination for Default)
Paragraph 8.47	(Validity)
Paragraph 8.48	(Wavier)
Paragraph 8.57	(Prohibition from Participation in Future Solicitation(s))
Paragraph 8.59	(Campaign Contribution Prohibition Following Final Decision in Master Agreement Proceeding)
Paragraph 10.0	(Survival)

MASTER AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES AND [CONTRACTOR] FOR

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of Supervisors of the County of Los Angeles has caused this Master Agreement to be executed by the Sheriff of Los Angeles County, or his designee, and Contractor has caused this Master Agreement to be executed in its behalf by its duly authorized representative, on the dates written below.

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
By:ROBERT G. LUNA, SHERIFF
Date:
[CONTRACTOR]
By (print):
Signed:
Title:
Date:

APPROVED AS TO FORM: DAWYN R. HARRISON County Counsel

Michele Jackson

Principal Deputy County Counsel

ATTACHMENT 1 STATEMENT OF WORK

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

ATTACHMENT 1 STATEMENT OF WORK POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>PAR</u>	<u>AGRA</u>	<u>ITITLE</u>	<u>PAGE</u>
1.0	SCC	PE OF WORK	1
2.0	HOL	JRS AND DAYS OF SERVICE	1
3.0	WO	RK LOCATIONS	1
4.0	GUII	DELINES FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF WORK	2
5.0	WO	RK SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS	2
6.0	ASS	UMPTIONS	3
7.0	SPE	CIFIC WORK REQUIREMENTS	3
	7.1	Completion of a Mentor Program	3
	7.2	Instrumentation and Recording	4
	7.3	Pre-test Interview for Polygraph Examinations	4
	7.4	Polygraph Examinations	5
	7.5	Observance of the Rights of Polygraph Examinees	6
	7.6	Polygraph Examination Scoring	6
	7.7	Post-Examination Follow-Up	7
	7.8	Restriction on Rendering Opinions	7
	7.9	Reporting Standards	7
8.0	QUA	ALITY ASSURANCE PLAN	8
	8.1	As Needed Meetings	8
	8.2	Contract Discrepancy Report	8
9.0	QUA	ALITY CONTROL	8

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1A: Examination Log

Attachment 1B: Examiner Billing Log

1.0 SCOPE OF WORK

- 1.1 The Los Angeles County (County) Sheriff's Department (Department) is seeking Qualified Contractors to enter into Master Agreements with the County to provide Polygraph Examination Services (Services) on as asneeded basis for the Department.
- 1.2 This Statement of Work (SOW) defines the tasks and responsibilities of Contractors providing Services for the Department's Polygraph Examinations Unit.

2.0 HOURS AND DAYS OF SERVICE

- 2.1 Contractor's Work hours may vary, depending on the needs of the Department. Generally, Work hours range from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. (Pacific Time).
- 2.2 Contractor must be available to provide Services seven days a week, with the exception of County-recognized holidays which can be found at:

https://lacounty.gov/government/about-la-county/about/.

3.0 WORK LOCATIONS

3.1 Polygraph examinations must be conducted at the Department locations listed below:

LOS ANGELES

2020 West Beverly Boulevard Los Angeles, California 90057 Telephone: (213) 989-2167 Fax: (213) 483-3862

WEST COVINA

2934 East Garvey Boulevard, South West Covina, California 91791 Telephone: (626) 858-8795

CHATSWORTH COURTHOUSE

9425 Penfield Avenue, Room 3200 Chatsworth, California 91311 Telephone: (818) 576-8875 or 8869

- 3.2 The County has the sole discretion to change, add, or delete locations throughout the Term of the Master Agreement. Such changes will be executed by the County and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 8.1 (Amendments and Change Notices) of the Master Agreement.
- 3.3 At the request of the County, Contractor may be required to provide a location where the polygraph examination will be performed by Contractor, at no additional cost to the County.
 - 3.3.1 The examination room must be free from distractions that would interfere with the ability of the Polygraph Examinee to focus on the

issues being addressed. The examination site should be relatively free from outside noises and distractions.

4.0 GUIDELINES FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF WORK

- 4.1 During the Term of the Master Agreement, Contractors have no guarantee of Work. Contractors will be utilized on an intermittent, as-needed basis to assist the Department during periods of increased hiring.
- 4.2 Contractors will be issued Work on a rotational basis, by availability, and geographical location.
- 4.3 County Project Manager has the sole discretion to issue Work to any of the Qualified Contractors, based on the needs of the Department.

5.0 WORK SCHEDULE REQUIREMENTS

- 5.1 The Department will prioritize the scheduling of polygraph examinations at locations most beneficial to the Department and Polygraph Examinees.
- 5.2 On or around the 1st of each calendar month, Contractor will be asked to submit a calendar of availability for the following calendar month to County Project Manager.
- 5.3 Contractor's calendar of availability will be used by Department background investigators, the Department's Polygraph Section clerical staff, or County Project Manager to assign Work to Contractors.
- 5.4 The daily schedule will be finalized at least three calendar days prior to the actual testing date by County Project Manager.
- 5.5 It is Contractor's responsibility to contact County Project Manager to ascertain if they have Work scheduled for any calendar day.
- 5.6 Contractor must keep County Project Manager informed of any scheduling conflicts.
 - 5.6.1 Contractor's default or failure to appear on time for a polygraph examination without written notice to the County, may result in a formal Contract Discrepancy Report.
- 5.7 Contractor must report for all polygraph examinations on-time, as scheduled.
- 5.8 Contractor must not administer more than three polygraph examinations in one day.
- 5.9 Any requests for scheduling variances must be emailed to County Project Manager, and will be subject to County Project Manager's approval.
- 5.10 Contractor must not reschedule a polygraph examination without first having notified and received written approval from County Project Manager.

6.0 ASSUMPTIONS

6.1 Contractor Responsibilities

- 6.1.1 Contractor or Contractor's staff must wear Department-issued identification badges while on County property.
- 6.1.2 Contractor must immediately inform County Project Manager of any criminal issues related to any polygraph examiner providing Services under the Master Agreement.
- 6.1.3 Contractor will be required to provide its own polygraph instrument at no additional cost to the County. Contractor's polygraph instrument must meet the requirements specified in Paragraph 7.2 (Instrumentation and Recording Requirements) below.
- 6.1.4 Contractor must keep County Project Manager informed of all pertinent information related to any polygraph examination or Polygraph Examinee.

6.2 County Furnished Items

The County will provide the following, unless otherwise specified herein:

- a. Examination room,
- b. Examination room furniture,
- c. Video and/or audio equipment,
- d. Office space required to prepare for and follow-up on polygraph examinations, and prepare required reports and opinions, and
- e. Telephone, fax machine, copier, and computer with applicable software.

7.0 SPECIFIC WORK REQUIREMENTS

7.1 Completion of a Mentor Program

Prior to performing any polygraph examinations independently, Contractor and Contractor's staff must complete a mentor program under the direct supervision of a Department-designated mentor at a Department-designated polygraph office. The mentor program will be coordinated and overseen by County Project Manager.

- 7.1.1 The mentor program will include, but is not limited to, review and practical application of instrumentation and recording procedures, polygraph pre-test interview, administration of polygraph examinations, observance of the rights of Polygraph Examinees, examination scoring, post-examination follow-up, restrictions on rendering opinions, reporting standards, invoice preparation, navigation of the Polygraph Examination Unit's data systems, and chart interpretation.
- 7.1.2 During this period, Contractor will perform all polygraph-related Work while being directly shadowed by the designated mentor. The

- designated mentor will observe and review all aspects of Contractor's Work to ensure compliance with Department standards and expectations.
- 7.1.3 Polygraph examinations performed during the mentor program must be billed at the rates set forth in Exhibit E (Rate of Compensation) to the Master Agreement.
- 7.1.4 County Project Manager, in consultation with the designated mentor, will have sole discretion to determine whether Contractor and Contractor's staff has successfully completed the mentor program. Contractor or Contractor's staff will not be scheduled for independent examinations until the County provides written confirmation of Contractor or Contractor's staff successful completion or such determination is made in writing. Only upon formal approval by County Project Manager will Contractor or Contractor's staff be placed on the Department's polygraph schedule and authorized to perform polygraph examinations independently.

7.2 Instrumentation and Recording Requirements

- 7.2.1 Contractor must conduct polygraph examinations with a four to six channel polygraph instrument designed to collect physiological data from the Polygraph Examinee, and as approved by County Project Manager.
- 7.2.2 The polygraph instrument must have the capability to record the following:
 - a. Respiration patterns recorded by pneumograph components.
 - b. Thoracic and abdominal patterns, recorded separately, using two pneumograph components, and
 - c. Electrodermal activity reflecting relative changes in the conductance or resistance of current by the epidermal tissue.
- 7.2.3 Heart rate, blood volume, and blood pressure must be recorded using a standard medical blood pressure cuff and sphygmograph.
- 7.2.4 Movement of the Polygraph Examinee's lower extremities must be monitored by the motion sensor.
- 7.2.5 Physiological recording during each examination must be continuous and must be of sufficient amplitude to be easily readable by Contractor and any reviewing polygraph examiner.

7.3 Pre-test Interview for Polygraph Examinations

7.3.1 Contractor must conduct pre-test interviews with Polygraph Examinees using the polygraph interview guidelines provided by County Project Manager.

- 7.3.2 The pre-test interview is intended to allow polygraph examiner to gather background information relevant to the polygraph examination, as well as:
 - a. Psychologically prepare the Polygraph Examinee for the examination,
 - b. Provide a baseline for body language and neurolinguistics, and
 - c. Allow polygraph examiner to determine if the Polygraph Examinee is testable.
- 7.3.3 Contractor must make a reasonable effort to determine the fitness of the Polygraph Examinee for testing. Where allowed by law, basic inquiries should be made into the medical and psychological condition of the Polygraph Examinee, as well as any recent drug use. Contractor must not conduct a polygraph examination if valid results cannot be reasonably foreseen.
- 7.3.4 If based on medical disclosures Contractor has a reasonable doubt concerning the fitness of the Polygraph Examinee to safely undergo a polygraph examination, Contractor must:
 - a. Immediately stop the polygraph examination,
 - b. Notify the Polygraph Examinee's Department background investigator, and
 - c. Request a release from the Polygraph Examinee's primary healthcare physician.

7.4 Polygraph Examinations

- 7.4.1 Contractor must only perform pre-employment polygraph examinations on Polygraph Examinees referred to Contractor by the Department.
- 7.4.2 Contractor must immediately inform County Project Manager of any conflict of interest related to a Polygraph Examinee.
- 7.4.3 Contractor must use the Department's Polygraph Examinations Unit's designated question template and review the questions with the Polygraph Examinee.
- 7.4.4 Contractor must ask examination questions with clarity and precision.
- 7.4.5 Contractor's examination questions must be balanced in terms of length and impact for each category of questions utilized, as follows:
 - Questions used in the assessment of truth and deception must be preceded and followed by time intervals of not less than 20 seconds, and
 - b. When approved and validated research supports the use of another time interval, that time span must prevail.

- 7.4.6 Contractor must conduct no fewer than four polygraph charts for each examination in conformance with a validated testing technique. Polygraph charts must include, but not be limited to, a stimulus test or calibration and verification of sensitivity question set.
- 7.4.7 Contractor must use standardized chart markings that are recognized and utilized as "accepted practice" within the polygraph profession.
- 7.4.8 All polygraph examinations will be reviewed for quality and accuracy by the Department's Polygraph Examination Unit prior to the submission of the final report.
- 7.4.9 Contractor will be required to perform quality control and/or peer review of other polygraph examiners, as requested by County Project Manager.

7.5 Observance of the Rights of Polygraph Examinees

- 7.5.1 Contractor must not disclose to any person, any personal information gained during the course of a polygraph examination except where such disclosure is required by law, or is a part of the pre-employment examination information.
- 7.5.2 Contractor must not render a conclusive diagnosis when the physiological records lack sufficient quality and clarity. This may include, but is not limited to:
 - a. Excessively distorted recordings,
 - b. Records with insufficient response capability, or
 - c. Records with tracing amplitudes below those generally accepted within the polygraph profession.

7.6 Polygraph Examination Scoring

- 7.6.1 Contractor must employ quantitative, numerical, and algorithm scoring for all polygraph examinations.
- 7.6.2 Contractor must analyze the Polygraph Examinee's physiological responses and form an opinion as to the Polygraph Examinee exhibiting any of the following:
 - a. Significant Response,
 - b. No Significant Response,
 - c. Deception Indicated,
 - d. No Deception Indicated,
 - e. Inconclusive, or
 - f. Countermeasures.
- 7.6.3 Contractor's notes from the polygraph examination must have

- sufficient clarity and precision to enable another polygraph examiner to read and interpret them with ease.
- 7.6.4 Contractor must not disclose the results of the polygraph examination until it has been adequately and sufficiently analyzed.
- 7.6.5 Contractor must maintain the confidentiality of Work conducted until both of the following are obtained:
 - a. Release by the Polygraph Examinee, and
 - b. Approval for any disclosure of information by County Project Manager.

7.7 Post-Examination Follow-Up

Contractor must afford each Polygraph Examinee a reasonable opportunity to explain, verbally and/or in writing, questionable responses to relevant questions in the recordings, except in instances where time or operational necessity dictate otherwise.

7.8 Restriction on Rendering Opinions

- 7.8.1 Contractor must not provide any report or opinion regarding the medical or psychological condition of the Polygraph Examinee. Even if the polygraph examiner is a licensed psychologist, the polygraph examiner must not render a psychological opinion because they are not hired to provide such services.
- 7.8.2 Contractor is allowed to describe the appearance or behavior of the Polygraph Examinee.
- 7.8.3 Polygraph outcome decisions must solely be based on the analysis of the polygraph examination data gathered.

7.9 Reporting Standards

Contractor must not knowingly submit a misleading or false polygraph examination report. Each polygraph examination report must be factual and impartial and must represent an objective account of the information gathered during the examination.

- 7.9.1 Contractor must prepare computer-generated reports using the format approved by the County.
- 7.9.2 Contractor must complete and submit polygraph examination reports to County Project Manager from their County issued email address no later than one Day following the examination, unless otherwise approved in writing by County Project Manager.
- 7.9.3 Contractor must keep a log of all polygraph examinations using Attachment 1A (Examination Log) to this SOW. Attachment 1A (Examination Log) must be attached to Attachment 1B (Examiner Billing Log) to this SOW, and submitted to County Project Manager no later than one week after the end of the month that Services are

being billed for.

8.0 QUALITY ASSURANCE PLAN

The Department will evaluate Contractor's performance under the Master Agreement using the quality assurance procedures as defined in Paragraph 8.14 (County's Quality Assurance Plan) of the Master Agreement.

8.1 As-Needed Meetings

During the Term of the Master Agreement, Contractor Project Manager must be available to meet and confer with County Project Manager, as necessary, in person or by phone. Contractor will be notified by County Project Manager, three calendar days prior to the meeting, as to the date, time, and location (if applicable), of the meeting.

8.2 Contract Discrepancy Report

- 8.2.1 Contractor must verbally notify County Project Manager of a Master Agreement discrepancy as soon as possible whenever a Master Agreement discrepancy is identified. The problem must be resolved within a time period mutually agreed upon by the Department and Contractor.
- 8.2.2 County Project Manager will determine whether a formal Contract Discrepancy Report must be issued. Upon receipt of Exhibit F (Contract Discrepancy Report) to the Master Agreement, Contractor is required to respond in writing to the County Project Manager within ten Business Days acknowledging the reported discrepancies or presenting contrary evidence. A plan for correction of all deficiencies identified in the Contract Discrepancy Report must be submitted to County Project Manager within ten Business Days.

9.0 QUALITY CONTROL

Contractor must submit <u>all</u> completed Work, including audio/video recordings, computerized charts, reports and any written documentation produced as a result of any and all polygraph examinations, to County Project Manager for quality review.

The County has a right to review all video and voice recordings for quality control purposes at any time.

ATTACHMENT 1A

EXAMINATION LOG

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

EXAMINATION LOG

NUMBER	DATE MM/DD/YYYY	TEST NUMBER	APPLICANT /SUBJECT LAST, FIRST NAME	SEX	AGE	AGENCY	EXAM TYPE: C/A, DST, DSR, SPECIFIC	RESULTS/ISSUE: NDI; DI; INC; REJECT; NO SHOW; (REASONS)	CHARTS	HOURS	EXAMINER COMMENTS
1											
2											
3											
4											
5											
6											
7											
8											
9											
10											
11											
12											
13											
14											
15											
16											
17											
18											
19											
20											
21											
22											
23											
24											
25											
26											
27											
28											
29											
30											
31											
32											
33											
34											
35											
36											

ATTACHMENT 1B

EXAMINER BILLING LOG

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

EXAMINER BILLING LOG

				CONTR	ACT PC	LYGRA	NPH EX	AMINE	R BILI	ING L	OG					
EXAMINER:																
ADDRESS:																
SSN#:	1				ı						MASTER	AGREEM	1ENT#:			
MONTH:																
Date																
Day of Week																
Exams																
1st n/s min 3 hrs																
2nd n/s flat \$112.25																
Hours																
Total Payment	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	
Date																
Day of Week																
Exams																
1st n/s min 3 hrs																
Last n/s flat \$122.25																
Hours																
Total Payment	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$ 0
Note: With the					y, no sho	w of the	day is a	minimur	n of 3 hi	rs at \$11	2.25/hr.	Last tes	t no show	of day i	s a flat rate	
of \$122.25 per so	neaulea	i poiygra	pn exam	ination.	I	I		I	I		1		_			
EVANABLEDIC CICI							D.4.T	_				TOTAL				0
EXAMINER'S SIGI	NATURE:						DAT	±: 					No Shows	0	\$122.25	\$0
												TOTAL		0	x \$112.25	\$0
Invoice Audited	by:			1	1	1	Print					TOTAL	Billing			\$0
Date:																
Invoice Approve	d for Pay	yment by	/:		1	1	Prin	t:				_				
Date:																

MASTER AGREEMENT FOR POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF EXHIBITS

EXHIBITS

Α	County's Administration
В	Contractor's Administration
С	Safely Surrendered Baby Law
D1	Certification of Employee Status
D2	Certification of No Conflict of Interest
D3	Contractor Acknowledgement and Confidentiality Agreement
E	Rate of Compensation
F	Contract Discrepancy Report
G	Invoice Discrepancy Report

COUNTY'S ADMINISTRATION

T NO.:		
IRECTOR:		
IRECTOR:		
CE MANAGER:		
	IRECTOR:	IRECTOR:

CONTRACTOR'S ADMINISTRATION

-	Contractor's Name
MASTER AGREEM	ENT NO.:
CONTRACTOR PRO	DJECT DIRECTOR:
Name:	
Title:	
Address:	
-	
Telephone:	
E-mail Address:	
CONTRACTOR'S A	UTHORIZED OFFICIAL(S):
Name:	OTTORILLE OTTOINE(O).
Title:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
E-mail Address:	
-	
Name:	
Title:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
E-mail Address:	
NOTIOES TO SONT	TO A OTO D
NOTICES TO CONT	RACTOR:
Name:	
Title:	
Address:	
Telephone	
Telephone:	
E-mail Address:	

SAFELY SURRENDERED BABY LAW



SAFELY SURRENDERED BABY LAW

Some parents of newborns can find themselves in difficult circumstances. Sadly, babies are sometimes harmed or abandoned by parents who feel that they're not ready or able to raise a child. Many of these mothers or fathers are afraid and don't know where to turn for help.

This is why California has a Safely Surrendered Baby Law, which gives parents the choice to legally leave their baby at any hospital or fire station in Los Angeles County.

FIVE THINGS YOU NEED TO KNOW ABOUT BABY SAFE SURRENDER

- 1 Your newborn can be surrendered at any hospital or fire station in Los Angeles County up to 72 hours after birth.
- You must leave your newborn with a fire station or hospital employee.
- You don't have to provide your name.
- You will only be asked to voluntarily provide a medical history.
- 5 You have 14 days to change your mind; a matching bracelet (parent) and anklet (baby) are provided to assist you if you change your mind.

No shame | No blame | No names



ABOUT THE BABY SAFE SURRENDER PROGRAM

In 2002, a task force was created under the guidance of the Children's Planning Council to address newborn abandonment and to develop a strategic plan to prevent this tragedy.

Los Angeles County has worked hard to ensure that the Safely Surrendered Baby Law prevents babies from being abandoned. We're happy to report that this law is doing exactly what it was designed to do: save the lives of innocent babies. Visit BabySafel.A.org to learn more.

No shame | No blame | No names

ANY FIRE STATION. ANY HOSPITAL. ANY TIME. 1.877.222.9723

BabySafeLA.org



SAFELY SURRENDERED BABY LAW



FROM SURRENDER TO ADOPTION: ONE BABY'S STORY

Los Angeles County firefighter Ted and his wife Becki were already parents to two boys. But when they got the call asking if they would be willing to care for a premature baby girl who'd been safely surrendered at a local hospital, they didn't hesitate.

Baby Jenna was tiny, but Ted and Becki felt lucky to be able to take her home. "We had always wanted to adopt," Ted says, "but taking home a vulnerable safely surrendered baby was even better. She had no one, but now she had us. And, more importantly, we had her."

Baby Jenna has filled the longing Ted and Becki had for a daughter—and a sister for their boys. Because her birth parent safely surrendered her when she was born, Jenna is a thriving young girl growing up in a stable and loving family.

ANSWERS TO YOUR QUESTIONS

Who is legally allowed to surrender the baby?

Anyone with lawful custody can drop off a newborn within the first 72 hours of birth.

Do you need to call ahead before surrendering a baby?

No. A newborn can be surrendered anytime, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, as long as the parent or guardian surrenders the child to an employee of the hospital or fire station.

What information needs to be provided?

The surrendering adult will be asked to fill out a medical history form, which is useful in caring for the child. The form can be returned later and includes a stamped return envelope. No names are required.

What happens to the baby?

After a complete medical exam, the baby will be released and placed in a safe and loving home, and the adoption process will begin.

What happens to the parent or surrendering adult?

Nothing. They may leave at any time after surrendering the baby.

How can a parent get a baby back?

Parents who change their minds can begin the process of reclaiming their baby within 14 days by calling the Los Angeles County Department of Children and Family Services at (800) 540-4000.

If you're unsure of what to do:

ou can call the hotline 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and anonymously spea

1.877.222.9723 or BabySafeLA.org

English, Spanish and 140 other languages spoker

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES MASTER AGREEMENT CERTIFICATION OF EMPLOYEE STATUS

(Note: This certification is to be executed and returned before Work begins. Work cannot begin until the County receives this executed document)

Contractor Name
Master Agreement No.:
I CERTIFY THAT: (1) I am an Authorized Official of Contractor; (2) the individual(s) named below is(are) this organization's employee(s); (3) applicable state and federal income tax, FICA, unemployment insurance premiums, and workers' compensation insurance premiums, in the correct amounts required by state and federal law, will be withheld as appropriate, and paid by Contractor for the individual(s) named below for the entire time period covered by the attached Work.
<u>EMPLOYEES</u>
1.
2.
3.
4.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
Signature of Authorized Official
Printed Name of Authorized Official
Title of Authorized Official
Date

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES MASTER AGREEMENT CERTIFICATION OF NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(Note: This certification is to be executed and returned before Work begins. Work cannot begin until the County receives this executed document.)

Contractor Name
Master Agreement No.:
Los Angeles County Code Section 2.180.010.A provides as follows:
 "Certain contracts prohibited. A. Notwithstanding any other section of this code, the County will not contract with, and will reject any Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) submitted by, the persons or entities specified below, unless the Board of Supervisors finds that special circumstances exist which justify the approval of such contract: Employees of the County or of public agencies for which the Board of Supervisors is the governing body; Profit-making firms or businesses in which employees described in subdivision 1 of subsection A serve as officers, principals, partners, or major shareholders; Persons who, within the immediately preceding 12 months, came within the provisions of subdivision 1 of subsection A, and who: Were employed in positions of substantial responsibility in the area of service to be performed by the contract; or Participated in any way in developing the contract or its service specifications; and Profit-making firms or businesses in which the former employees, described in subdivision 3 of subsection A, serve as officers, principals, partners, or major shareholders."
Contractor hereby declares and certifies that no Contractor Personnel, nor any other person acting on Contractor's behalf, who prepared and/or participated in the preparation of the SOQ submitted for the Work specified above, is within the purview of County Code Section 2.180.010.A, above.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
Signature of Authorized Official
Printed Name of Authorized Official
Title of Authorized Official

Date

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES MASTER AGREEMENT

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

(Note: This certification is to be executed and returned before Work begins. Work cannot begin until the County receives this executed document.)

Contractor Name:	
Master Agreement No:	
GENERAL INFORMATION: The Contractor referenced above has entered into a Master Agreement with the County. The County requires the Corporation to sign this Contractor Acknowledge.	
CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Contractor understands and agrees that the Contractor employees, consulta (Contractor's Staff) that will provide Services in the above referenced agree understands and agrees that Contractor's Staff must rely exclusively upon Contractor's payable by virtue of Contractor's Staff's performance of Work under the contractor of the contra	ement are Contractor's sole responsibility. Contractor Contractor for payment of salary and any and all other
Contractor understands and agrees that Contractor's Staff are not employ whatsoever and that Contractor's Staff do not have and will not acquire a Los Angeles by virtue of my performance of Work under the above-referer agrees that Contractor's Staff will not acquire any rights or benefits from the between any person or entity and the County of Los Angeles.	ny rights or benefits of any kind from the County of need Master Agreement. Contractor understands and
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT: Contractor and Contractor's Staff may be involved with work pertaining to sen Contractor and Contractor's Staff may have access to confidential data and information the County. In addition, Contractor and Contractor's Staff may a other vendors doing business with the County of Los Angeles. The County has and information in its possession, especially data and information concern Contractor and Contractor's Staff understand that if they are involved in Countractor's Staff, will protect the confidentiality of such data and information. Agreement as a condition of work to be provided by Contractor's Staff for the	formation pertaining to persons and/or entities receiving also have access to proprietary information supplied by as a legal obligation to protect all such confidential data ming health, criminal, and welfare recipient records. In the County must ensure that Contractor and Consequently, Contractor must sign this Confidentiality
Contractor and Contractor's Staff hereby agrees that they will not divulge to an while performing Work pursuant to the above-referenced Master Agreemen Contractor and Contractor's Staff agree to forward all requests for the release Manager.	t between Contractor and the County of Los Angeles.
Contractor and Contractor's Staff agree to keep confidential all health, crir information pertaining to persons and/or entities receiving services from the Codocumentation, Contractor proprietary information and all other original mater Contractor's Staff under the above-referenced Master Agreement. Contractoridential materials against disclosure to other than Contractor or County Contractor and Contractor's Staff agree that if proprietary information supplied employment, Contractor and Contractor's Staff must keep such information of	ounty, design concepts, algorithms, programs, formats, rials produced, created, or provided to Contractor and actor and Contractor's Staff agree to protect these employees who have a need to know the information. If by other County vendors is provided to me during this
Contractor and Contractor's Staff agree to report any and all violations of this by any other person of whom Contractor and Contractor's Staff become awar	
Contractor and Contractor's Staff acknowledge that violation of this agreement and/or criminal action and that the County of Los Angeles may seek all possible to the county of Los Angeles may seek all possible	
SIGNATURE:	DATE:
PRINTED NAME:	
POSITION:	

Los Angeles County

Sheriff's Department



RATE OF COMPENSATION

POLYGRAPH EXAMINATION SERVICES

Pursuant to Paragraph 5.0 (Contract Sum) of the Master Agreement, Contractor will be paid for Work performed at the all-inclusive rates below. The all-inclusive rates will remain firm and fixed for the Term of the Master Agreement. Contractor must invoice the County in accordance with Paragraph 5.5 (Invoices and Payments) of the Master Agreement.

A. Pre-employment Polygraph Examination

\$112.25 per hour

This all-inclusive rate for polygraph examination services includes a "No Shows" or "No Exams." "No Shows" or "No Exams" which are the last scheduled polygraph examination of the day, must be billed at the all-inclusive rate listed in Section B below.

The County and Contractor acknowledge that most examinations are generally two hours in length.

The County will provide Contractor with not less than one hour of cumulative time for pre-examination and post-examination Work. Therefore, all completed polygraph examinations must be billed at a three-hour minimum, including all "No-Shows" or "No Exams" that are not the last scheduled exam of the day.

Exams that exceed the three-hour minimum require prior written approval by County Project Manager and Contractor must provide a justification in the "comments" section of Attachment 1A (Examination Log) to Attachment 1 (Statement of Work) to the Master Agreement.

B. "No Shows" or "No Exams" - Last Scheduled Polygraph Examination

\$122.25 per scheduled exam

This all-inclusive rate for each scheduled polygraph examination that is a "No Show" or "No Exam" and is the last scheduled polygraph examination.

CONTRACT DISCREPANCY REPORT

TO:		
FROM: _		
DATES:	Prepared by County:	Master Agreement No.:
	Received by Contractor:	
	Returned by Contractor:	
	Action Completed:	
DISCREP	ANCY PROBLEMS:	
Signature	of County Representative	Date
CONTRAC	CTOR RESPONSE (Cause and Corrective Action):	:
Signature	of Contractor Representative	Date
COUNTY	EVALUATION OF CONTRACTOR RESPONSE: _	
Signature	of County Representative	Date
COUNTY	ACTIONS:	
CONTRAC	CTOR NOTIFIED OF ACTION:	
County Re	epresentative's Signature and Date	
Contractor	Representative's Signature and Date	

INVOICE DISCREPANCY REPORT

1.	INVOICE DISCREPANCY (to be completed	l by County Project Manager)
	Today's Date:	Master Agreement No.:
	Contractor:	
	Phone Number:	
	Invoice Number:	Date of Invoice:
	Description of Issue(s) with Invoice:	
	Signed:	Date:
	County Project Mana	ager
2.	REVIEWED	
	Signed:	Date:
	County Project Direct	ctor
3.	CONTRACTOR RESPONSE (to be comple	ted by Contractor Project Manager)
	Date received from County Project Manager	r:
	Explanation regarding Issue(s) with Invoice:	·
	Corrective Action Taken:	
	Signed:	Date:
	Contractor Project D	irector
4.	COUNTY EVALUATION of Contractor's Re	sponse and Action taken.
5.	APPROVED BY COUNTY	
-		Date:
6		
Ο.	CONTRACTOR NOTIFIED ON	Date:

INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. County Project Manager: Forward IDR to Contractor for investigation and response.
- 2. Contractor: Must respond to County Project Manager in writing within five Business Days of receipt of IDR.
- 3. County Project Manager: Forward completed IDR to Contracts Unit.

BOARD LETTER/MEMO CLUSTER FACT SHEET

CLUSTER AGENDA REVIEW DATE	10/22/2025
BOARD MEETING DATE	11/12/2025
SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICT AFFECTED	⊠ AII □ 1 st □ 2 nd □ 3 rd □ 4 th □ 5 th
DEPARTMENT(S)	Probation
SUBJECT	Authorize the Chief Probation Officer and District Attorney to execute and enter into a Subaward Services Agreement (SSA) with the City of Los Angeles (City) to claim grant funding for participation in the Community Law Enforcement and Recovery (CLEAR)
	Program
PROGRAM	N/A
AUTHORIZES DELEGATED AUTHORITY TO DEPT	⊠ Yes □ No
SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT	☐ Yes ☐ No
	If Yes, please explain why:
SB 1439 SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION FORM REVIEW COMPLETED BY EXEC OFFICE	☐ Yes No – Not Applicable
DEADLINES/ TIME CONSTRAINTS	
COST & FUNDING	Total cost: Probation: \$248,352.00 LADA: \$378,359.00 Funding source: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program, JAG 21 grant funds
	TERMS (if applicable): October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2025
	Explanation:
PURPOSE OF REQUEST	The purpose of the recommended actions is to comply with CLEAR Program legislation which requires that a collaborative, multi-agency effort involving Probation Department, Los Angeles County District Attorney (DA), Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD), and the Los Angeles City Attorney's Office be formalized in an SSA as a prerequisite to the City's release of CLEAR Program funding.
BACKGROUND (include internal/external issues that may exist including any related motions)	The CLEAR Program is a multi-jurisdictional program that, since 1998, has brought together law enforcement, government, and community agencies in an effort to rid neighborhoods of street gang violence. On May 6, 2008, the Board adopted the Chief Executive Officer's recommendations to avoid retroactive agreements, but services required under the CLEAR Program have been provided by Probation and LADA, in anticipation of the County ultimately being reimbursed through grants funded by JAG 21. However, despite working with the City to ensure timely reimbursement payments, delays still exist primarily because of the lengthy process to negotiate JAG funding allocations and the City's delays in preparation and approval of the SSA.
EQUITY INDEX OR LENS WAS UTILIZED	☐ Yes ☐ No If Yes, please explain how:
SUPPORTS ONE OF THE	
NINE BOARD PRIORITIES	If Yes, please state which one(s) and explain how: Care First, Jails Last: This priority aims to provide programs and support to individuals and divert them from jail.
DEPARTMENTAL	Name, Title, Phone # & Email:
CONTACTS	Stacey Lopez-Maddox, Administrative Deputy: (562) 940-2516
	Email: Stacy.Lopez-Maddox@probation.lacounty.gov



COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES PROBATION DEPARTMENT

9150 EAST IMPERIAL HIGHWAY – DOWNEY, CALIFORNIA 90242 (562) 940-2501



November 12, 2025

The Honorable Board of Supervisors County of Los Angeles 383 Kenneth Hahn Hall of Administration 500 West Temple Street Los Angeles, CA 90012

Dear Supervisors:

AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF PROBATION OFFICER AND DISTRICT ATTORNEY
TO ENTER INTO A SUBAWARD SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES FOR REIMBURSEMENT FOR
COMMUNITY LAW ENFORCEMENT AND RECOVERY PROGRAM PARTICIPATION

(ALL SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS) (3 VOTES)

<u>SUBJECT</u>

This is to request that your Board authorize the Chief Probation Officer and District Attorney to execute and enter into a Subaward Services Agreement (SSA) with the City of Los Angeles (City). Execution of the SSA is required in order to claim grant funding from the City to compensate the County of Los Angeles (County) for the County of Los Angeles Probation Department (Probation) along with the County of Los Angeles District Attorney's Office's (LADA) participation during the FY 2021-2022, in the Community Law Enforcement and Recovery (CLEAR) Program. CLEAR is a multi-agency gang intervention project funded by the United States Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of Justice Assistance, Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program, JAG 21 grant funds, Federal Award Identification Number 15PBJA-21-GG-01232-JAGX, Assistance Listing Number 16.738

JOINT RECOMMENDATION WITH THE DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE THAT YOUR BOARD:

 Delegate authority to the Chief Probation Officer and the District Attorney, or their designees, to execute and enter into an SSA with the City, substantially similar to the Attachment, in the amount of \$626,711.00, in order to reimburse the County for Each Supervisor November 12, 2025 Page **2** of **3**

CLEAR Program services provided during FY 2021-2022 by Probation (\$248,352.00) and LADA (\$378,359.00). The reimbursement period, originally from July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, has been extended by the Grantor through September 30, 2025. The CLEAR Program is funded by the JAG 21 grant funds.

2. Delegate authority to the Chief Probation Officer and the District Attorney, or their designees, to serve as Project Directors for their respective segments of the CLEAR Program and to approve any subsequent amendments, modifications, and/or extensions of the SSA that do not increase the net County cost of the program; to continue to apply, submit, and execute all required grant application documents, including assurances, certificates, and the SSA, when and if such future funding opportunity becomes available; and to terminate for convenience the SSA when it is in the best interest of the County.

PURPOSE/JUSTIFICATION OF RECOMMENDED ACTION

The purpose of the recommended actions is to comply with CLEAR Program legislation which requires that this collaborative, multi-agency effort involving the Probation, LADA, Los Angeles Police Department (LAPD), and the Los Angeles City Attorney's Office be formalized in an SSA as a prerequisite to the City's release of CLEAR Program funding.

IMPLEMENTATION OF STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS

The recommended actions support Countywide Strategic Plan North Star 2: Foster Vibrant and Resilient Communities, Focus Area Goal B, Care First, Jails Last. Specifically, it will address Strategy iii, Integrated, Equitable, and Culturally-Responsive Services.

FISCAL IMPACT/FINANCING

The SSA for FY 2021-2022 authorizes reimbursement from JAG 21 for the grant award period of October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2025, for the CLEAR activity completed at nine (9) CLEAR sites: Foothill, Hollenbeck (Boyle Heights), Hollenbeck (Ramona Gardens), Newton, Northeast, Rampart, Southeast, Southwest (Baldwin Village), and 77th Street. Under the FY 2021-2022 SSA, the City will provide the County a total of \$626,711.00 as follows: 1) \$248,352.00 to Probation to partially fund salaries and employee benefits for nine (9) existing Deputy Probation Officer II positions; and 2) \$378,359.00 to LADA to partially fund salaries and employee benefits for nine (9) Deputy District Attorney III positions, respectively. These revenues were included in each respective County Department's FY 2021-2022 Final Adopted Budget.

Each Supervisor November 12, 2025 Page **3** of **3**

FACTS AND PROVISIONS/LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

The CLEAR Program is a multi-jurisdictional program that, since 1998, has brought together law enforcement, government, and community agencies in an effort to rid neighborhoods of street gang violence. On May 6, 2008, your Board adopted the Chief Executive Officer's recommendations to avoid retroactive agreements, but services required under the CLEAR Program have been provided by Probation and LADA, in anticipation of the County ultimately being reimbursed through grants funded by JAG 21. However, despite working with the City to ensure timely reimbursement payments, delays still exist primarily because of the lengthy process to negotiate JAG funding allocations and the City's delays in preparation and approval of the SSA.

In order for Probation and LADA to claim reimbursement from the City for the CLEAR Program, the attached SSA between the City and the County must be signed by the County Departments that are receiving this funding. The Mayor of Los Angeles will sign and fully execute the SSA when it is received from the County. This will authorize the City to reimburse Probation and LADA.

The proposed SSA has been reviewed and approved as to form by County Counsel.

IMPACT ON CURRENT SERVICES (OR PROJECTS):

Approval of these recommendations will maintain the existing level of services and will enable Probation and LADA to work with LAPD and Los Angeles City Attorney's Office to provide a flexible and coordinated response to crime perpetrated by criminal street gangs by identifying the gangs associated within each community and addressing each community's gang problem. Overall, the continued receipt of the City's reimbursement for CLEAR Program services will mitigate disruption in service delivery.

Respectfully submitted,	
GUILLERMO VIERA ROSA	NATHAN J. HOCHMAN
CHIEF PROBATION OFFICER	DISTRICT ATTORNEY

TH:JK:jk

Enclosures

c: Executive Officer
Chief Executive Office
County Counsel

Los Angeles County Chief Executive Office Grant Management Statement for Grants \$100,000 or More

Department:

County of Los Angeles Probation Department

Grant Project Title and Description COM			MUNITY LAW ENFOR	RCEMENT AND	RECOV	/ERY (CLEAR) PROG!	RAM
Recovery (C decreasing the	LEAR) prog ne criminal a n of City and	gram is to fa activity of ta I County cri	geles City/County (cilitate the recover argeted gangs in de minal justice agend ve agencies.	ry of gang-inf signated com	fested o muniti	comm	unities ough a	by n effec	
	Fundi	ng Agency		Prog (Fed. Grant #/Sta		Code #)		t Accept Deadline	
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) FY 2021-22				FAIN #15PBJA-21-GG-01232- JAGX / CDFA #16.738			N/A		
Total Amount o Grant Funding:		\$248,352		County Match:		(\$0		
Grant Period	Begin Date:	Jul	y 1, 2021	End Date:	June 30, 2022				
Number of Pers Under This Gra			Full Time:	9	Part T	ime:		0	
		Obligations Im	posed on the County W	hen the Grant E	Expires				
•	-	•	med this is a grant-funde			Yes	<u>X</u>	No	
_	_		ed on temporary ("N") ite	ms?		Yes	<u>X</u>	No	
•			after the grant expires?	4.5		Yes		No	<u>X</u>
=	_	_	gram after the grant expi	res, the Departme	ent will:	V.		NI.	
a.) Absorb the program cost without reducing other servicesb.) Identify other revenue sources (describe below)					Yes Yes		No No	<u>X</u>	
b.) Identify of	nei levenue soui	ces (describe be	elow)			1 68		INO -	<u>X</u>
c.) Eliminate or reduce, as appropriate, positions/program costs funded by the grant. Yes <u>x</u> No									
Impact of addition	nal personnel on	existing space:							
None	•								
Other requiremen	nts not mentione	d above:							
None									

Department Head Signature Date	10/15/25	
--------------------------------	----------	--

Los Angeles County Chief Executive Office Grant Management Statement for Grants \$100,000 or More

Department: DISTRICT	ATTORNE	Y'S OFFICE				
Grant Project Title and Description COMMUNITY LAW ENFORCEMENT AND RECOVERY (CLEAR) PROGRAM					RAM	
The primary purpose of Recovery (CLEAR) prodecreasing the criminal collaboration of City are forms the CLEAR's confidence of the collaboration of the CLEAR's confidence of the collaboration of the clear of the cle	ogram is to fa activity of ta ad County cri	ncilitate the recover argeted gangs in de minal justice agen	ry of gang-in esignated con	fested comm nmunities thr	unities by ough an effe	
Fun	ding Agency		Prog (Fed. Grant #/Sta		Grant Accept Deadline	
Edward Byrne Memo	rial Justice A FY 2021-22		FAIN #15PBJA JAGX / CD	N/A		
Total Amount of Grant Funding:	\$378,359		County Match:	\$0		
Grant Period Begin Date:	Jul	y 1, 2021	End Date:	June	e 30, 2022	
Number of Personnel Hired Under This Grant		Full Time:	0	Part Time:	9	
Will all personnel hired for this Will all personnel hired for this	program be info	=	ed program?	Expires Yes Yes	<u>X</u> No <u>X</u> No	
Is the County obligated to continue this program after the grant expires?				Yes	No	<u>X</u>
If the County is not obligated to a.) Absorb the program cost	=	-	ires, the Departm	nent will: Yes	No	X
b.) Identify other revenue sources (describe below)				Yes	No	X
c.) Eliminate or reduce, as a	ppropriate, positi	ons/program costs funde	d by the grant.	Yes	<u>X</u> No	
Impact of additional personnel	on existing space	:				
None						
Other requirements not mention	ned above:					
None						

Date

Department Head Signature



SUBAWARD AGREEMENT

Subrecipient: The County of Los Angeles

City Contract Number _____

Title:	Fiscal Year 2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant ("JAG 21") Program, Community Law Enforcement and Recovery ("CLEAR") Program

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Number	Section Little	Page Number
	I. GENERAL INFORMATION	
§1.1 §1.2 §1.3 §1.4	Federal Award Information	1
	II. SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
§2.1 §2.2 §2.3 §2.4	Summary of Requirements	4 7
§3.1 §3.2 §3.3 §3.4 §3.5 §3.6 §3.7 §3.8 §3.9 §3.10 §3.11 §3.12 §3.13	Independent Party	171818181819192020
	Cig. acc. o : ago	

EXHIBITS

Exhibit A	U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) Grants Financial Guide
Exhibit B	Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (JAG) FY 2021 Local Formula Solicitation
Exhibit C	DOJ Bureau of Justice Assistance (BJA) Special Conditions
Exhibit D	Office of Justice Programs (OJP) General Conditions for FY 2021 Awards
Exhibit E	DOJ Certified Standard Assurances
Exhibit F	Modification Request Form
Exhibit G	Invoice Requirements
Exhibit H	Services Plan
Exhibit I	Performance Metrics Report

AGREEMENT NUMBER	OF CITY CONTRACTS
	BETWEEN
THE	CITY OF LOS ANGELES
AND THE	COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

THIS SUBAWARD AGREEMENT ("Agreement" or "Contract") is made and entered into by and between the City of Los Angeles, a municipal corporation (the "City"), and the County of Los Angeles, a political subdivision of the State of California (the "Subrecipient"). In consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and the mutual benefits to be derived therefrom, the City and Subrecipient (each a "Party" and collectively, the "Parties") agree as follows:

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

§1.1 <u>Federal Award Information</u>

The "Federal award" (as such term is defined in the Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR"), 2 CFR §200.38, and used in this Agreement, is the Fiscal Year ("FY") 2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program ("JAG 21" or the "Grant"), FAIN No. 15PBJA-21-GG-01232-JAGX, CFDA #16.738, Federal award date October 12, 2021, having a period of performance beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2025. This is not a "Research & Development" award as defined in 2 CFR §200.87 and 200.331, and there is no "indirect cost rate" for this federal award as defined in 2 CFR §200.56 and 200.331.

The "Federal awarding agency" (as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.36 and used in this Agreement) is the United States Department of Justice ("DOJ"), Office of Justice Programs ("OJP"), Bureau of Justice Assistance ("BJA") (collectively, the "Grantor").

The City, acting through its Mayor's Office of Public Safety ("Mayor's Office"), acts as the "pass-through entity" (as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.74 and used in this Agreement) for this subaward of the Federal award to the Subrecipient.

§1.2 <u>Subaward Information and Period of Performance</u>

Subrecipient hereby accepts the following subaward ("Subaward") of the Federal award upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement:

Subaward amount: \$626,711.00

Grant Award Period of Performance: October 1, 2020 through

September 30, 2025

Subaward Period of Performance ("Term"): July 1, 2021 through

June 30, 2022

Match Requirement:	None
Subrecipient Identifier:	
Indirect Cost Rate for Subaward:	None

The term of this Agreement shall be the "Term" as set forth in this Section 1.2.

Due to the need for Subrecipient's services to be provided continuously on an ongoing basis, Subrecipient may have provided services prior to the execution of this Agreement. To the extent that said services were performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, those services are hereby ratified.

§1.3 Parties and Notice

The Parties to this Agreement, and their respective representatives who are authorized to administer this Agreement and to whom formal notices, demands and communications shall be given are as follows:

Party: City of Los Angeles

Authorized Representative: Brian K. Williams, Deputy Mayor Authorized Department: Mayor's Office of Public Safety 200 N. Spring Street, Room 303

Los Angeles, CA 90012 Phone: (213) 978-0600

Email: Brian.K.Williams@lacity.org

Party: County of Los Angeles

Authorized Representative: Þæ@æ; ÁRÊAP[&@ æ; , District Attorney

Authorized Department: Los Angeles County District Attorney's Office

Address, Phone, Fax, E-mail: Hall of Justice

211 West Temple Street Los Angeles, CA 90012 Phone: (213) 974-3500

Party: County of Los Angeles

Authorized Representative: Guillermo Viera Rosa, Chief Probation Officer Authorized Department: Los Angeles County Probation Department

Address, Phone, Fax, E-mail: 9150 East Imperial Highway

Downey, CA 90242 Phone: (562) 940-2501

Formal notices, demands and communications to be given hereunder by either Party shall be made in writing and may be effected by personal delivery or by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested and shall be

deemed communicated as of the date of mailing. If the name of the person designated to receive the notices, demands or communications or the address of such person is changed, written notice shall be given, in accordance with this section, within five business days of said change.

§1.4 Authorities

The Los Angeles City Council and the Mayor have accepted the Federal award and have authorized the City to execute this Agreement (C.F. #22-1106; 10/10/23).

Subrecipient warrants that it has obtained written authorization from its city council, governing board, or authorized body to execute this Agreement and accept and use the Subaward. Subrecipient further warrants that such written authorization specifies that Subrecipient and the city council, governing board or authorized body agree:

- A. That any liability arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be the responsibility of Subrecipient and the city council, governing board or authorized body.
- B. That Subaward funds shall not be used to supplant expenditures controlled by the city council, governing board or authorized body.
- C. That the official executing this Agreement is, in fact, authorized to do so.

Subrecipient shall maintain this proof of authority on file and make it readily available upon demand.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

II. SUBAWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

§2.1 Summary of Requirements

By executing this Agreement, Subrecipient hereby agrees that it shall comply with all terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, which includes all guidance, regulations, assurances, conditions, and requirements (collectively, "Requirements") of the Federal awarding agency that are applicable to a recipient and/or subrecipient of a Federal award or grant. Such Requirements are set forth in the following documents and are incorporated herein by reference: (1) the most recent update of the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, herein attached as Exhibit A; (2) JAG FY 2021 Local Formula Solicitation, herein attached as Exhibit B; (3) DOJ BJA FY 2021 Special Conditions, herein attached as Exhibit C; (4) OJP FY 2021 General Conditions, herein attached at Exhibit D; (5) DOJ Certified Standard Assurances, herein attached as Exhibit E; (6) OJP Legal Notices applicable to JAG FY 2021 award; and (7) the Cost Principles, Uniform Administrative Requirements, and Audit Requirements ("Part 200 Uniform Requirements") for federal grant programs as adopted and supplemented by the DOJ in Title 2, Part 200 of the Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR"), available at www.ojp.gov/funding/part200uniformrequirements and in updates issued by the Office of Management and Budget at www.whitehouse.gov/omb/.

Subrecipient hereby certifies that it has the legal authority to execute this Agreement, accept the Subaward given through this Agreement, and has the institutional, managerial and financial capability to ensure proper planning, management and completion of its projects being funded by the Subaward. Subrecipient hereby acknowledges that it is responsible for reviewing and adhering to all Requirements referenced above. For reference and without limitations, certain of the Requirements are set forth in more detail in the sections below.

§2.2 <u>City Administrative Requirements</u>

- A. Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the City is acting as a "pass-through entity" (as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.74 and used in this Agreement) for this Subaward and that the City shall have the rights and obligations relating to this Subaward and its administration as set forth in this Agreement and in 2 CFR Part 200.
- B. Subrecipient and the City have previously completed mutually approved Budget Narratives and Allocations which were approved by DOJ prior to the execution of this Agreement (the "Budget") and attached hereto as Exhibit F. Subrecipient shall use the Subaward funds strictly in accordance with the Budget, and any expenditures not so made shall be deemed disallowed under this Subaward.

Any request by Subrecipient to modify the Budget must be made in writing and accompanied by a completed Modification Request Form, attached hereto as Exhibit G, and a revised Budget showing such modification and containing all supporting documentation as required. Budget modification requests must be submitted to the City no later than thirty (30) days before the end of each fiscal quarter for which modification is sought, as follows:

Budget Modification Requests (Fiscal Quarters)	Submission Deadline
October 1 – December 31	November 30
January 1 – March 31	February 28
April 1 – June 30	May 31
July 1 – September 30	August 31

Requests submitted after any such deadline will be returned to Subrecipient and will not be accepted until the following submission period. The City shall notify Subrecipient in writing if Budget modification requests are inaccurate and/or incomplete. Inaccurate and/or incomplete requests shall be returned to the Subrecipient for revision and shall be accepted by the City when such requests are accurate and complete. Subrecipient shall not expend any funds on modified Budget items until such modification is approved by the City and DOJ.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, final budget modification requests must be submitted to the City no later than ninety (90) days prior to the end of the applicable Subaward Period of Performance deadline to provide the City time to meet Federal awarding agency requirements. At that time, any unexpended funds may be re-directed to other needs or as directed by the DOJ.

C. DOJ may approve extensions to the Federal Award at its sole discretion. Any request by Subrecipient to extend the Subaward Period of Performance must be made in writing to the Mayor's Office on a modification request form. Such requests must be submitted to the City no later than ninety (90) days before the end of the applicable Subaward Period of Performance deadline. Extension requests made after such ninety (90) days date will be returned to the Subrecipient and will not be accepted. The City will shall notify the Subrecipient in writing if project extension requests are inaccurate and/or incomplete. Inaccurate and/or incomplete project extension requests shall be returned to the Subrecipient for revision and shall be accepted by the City when project extension requests are accurate and complete. All extension requests must be

- approved by DOJ in writing during the term of this Agreement to be effective.
- Subrecipient shall complete and deliver to the City all forms required by DOJ in connection with the implementation of Subrecipient's projects under the Subaward.
- E. Subrecipient agrees that any equipment, product, service or activity funded with this Subaward shall comply with any and all technological and/or interoperability specifications and standards as may be approved by the Federal awarding agency, and any such equipment, product, service or activity not so compliant shall be not eligible for funding by this Subaward. Subrecipient shall further ensure that it retains from its contractors, subcontractors, and vendors all rights related to inventions, copyrightable materials, and data for which the Federal awarding agency has rights to, as more fully set forth in 2 CFR §200.315 and Section 2.4.G of this Agreement.
- F. Any "equipment" (as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.33 and used in this Agreement) acquired or obtained with Subaward funds shall be prominently marked as follows: "Purchased with funds provided by the U.S. Department of Justice." Subrecipient shall take a physical inventory of all equipment acquired or obtained with Subaward funds and reconcile the results with equipment records at least once every year.
- G. This Subaward is not a "fixed amount award" as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.45. Subrecipient agrees that disbursement of this Subaward to Subrecipient shall be made on a reimbursement method.

In requesting reimbursement from Subaward funds, Subrecipient shall prepare, maintain and provide to the City supporting documentation and duly completed forms all as set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto, along with invoices, purchase orders, proof of delivery, proof of payment and payroll records, timesheets, receipts and any other supporting documentation necessary to fully and accurately describe the expenditure of funds for which reimbursement from the Subaward is requested (collectively, the "Reimbursement Request"). All such supporting documentation for the Reimbursement Request shall satisfy applicable Federal, State and City audit and review standards and requirements. Such documentation shall be prepared at the sole expense and responsibility of Subrecipient, and the City and the Subaward will not reimburse the Subrecipient for any costs incurred for such preparation. The City may request, in writing, changes to the content and format of such documentation at any time, and the City reserves the right to request additional supporting documentation to substantiate costs incurred at any time. The City will notify Subrecipient in writing if a Reimbursement

Request is inaccurate and/or incomplete. Inaccurate and/or incomplete Reimbursement Requests shall be returned to Subrecipient for revision and shall be accepted by the City when Reimbursement Requests are accurate and complete. Reimbursement Requests must be submitted to the City in a timely manner and on a quarterly basis. All Reimbursement Requests must be submitted to:

Attn: Ebony Cobb, Senior Grant Specialist Mayor's Office of Public Safety 200 North Spring Street, Room 303 Los Angeles, CA 90012 ebony.cobb@lacity.org

H. Subrecipient acknowledges that the City makes no commitment to disburse Subaward funds beyond the terms set forth herein and that funding for all periods during the Subaward Term is subject to the continuing availability to the City of federal funds for this Subaward from the Federal awarding agency. This Agreement may be terminated immediately upon written notice to Subrecipient of such loss or reduction of Subaward funds.

§2.3 DOJ, OJP, and BJA Requirements and Conditions

The requirements and conditions of this Subaward are material requirements of the Subaward. Compliance with all assurances, certifications, and guidance is also a material requirement. By signing and accepting this Subaward, the Subrecipient officially accepts all material requirements of the Subaward and specifically adopts all such assurances or certifications. These include, without limitation, the Requirements for recipients and subrecipients set forth in the JAG Solicitation, the DOJ BJA Special Conditions, the DOJ Standard Assurances, the DOJ Grants Financial Guide, the OJP General Conditions, the OJP Legal Notices, and Part 200 Uniform Requirements.

Failure to comply with these requirements and conditions may result in disallowed costs or additional restrictions on current and future Subaward funding, pursuant to 2 CFR Sections 200.205 and 200.338. In addition, any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement to the federal government related to this award (or concealment or omission of a material fact) may be the subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34 U.S.C. 10271-10273), and also may lead to imposition of civil penalties and administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.S.C. 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).

Without limitation, some of the Requirements of this Subaward are set forth below in this Section 2.3:

- A. The Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 CFR Part 200, as adopted and supplemented by the DOJ in 2 CFR Part 2800, apply to this Subaward.
- B. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the DOJ Grants Financial Guide. References to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide are to the DOJ Grants Financial Guide attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A and available at www.ojp.gov/funding/financialguidedoj/overview, including any updated version that may be posted during the period of performance.
- C. Subrecipients that are eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 CFR 200.414(f), and that elects to use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate, must advise OJP in writing of both its eligibility and its selection, and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs as defined by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements.
- D. If the Subrecipient currently has other active awards of federal funds or if the Subrecipient receives any other award of federal funds during the period of performance for this award, the Subrecipient promptly must determine whether funds from any of those other federal awards have been, are being, or are to be used (in whole or in part) for one or more of the identical cost items for which funds are provided under this award. If so, the Subrecipient must promptly notify the awarding agency in writing of the potential duplication and, if so requested by the DOJ awarding agency, must seek a budget-modification or change-of-project-scope grant adjustment notice to eliminate any inappropriate duplication of funding.
- E. Subrecipients must comply with applicable restrictions on Subawards, including restrictions on Subawards to entities that do not acquire and provide (to the recipient) the unique entity identifier required for the System for Award Management (SAM) registration.
- F. Subrecipient must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an actual or imminent breach if the Subrecipient: (1) creates, collects, uses, processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of personally identifiable information (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or (2) uses or operates a Federal information system. The Subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent breach to an OJP Program Manager no later than twenty-four (24) hours after an occurrence of an actual breach, or the detection of an imminent breach.

- G. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable requirements for authorization of any Subaward. This condition applies to agreements that for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements OJP considers a Subaward (and therefore does not consider a procurement contract).
- H. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently \$250,000.00). This condition applies to agreements that for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements OJP considers a procurement contract (and therefore does not consider a subaward).
- I. Consistent with Part 200 Uniform Requirements, including as set out at 2 CFR 200.300 and 200.319(a), Subrecipient may not (in any procurement transaction) discriminate against any person or entity on the basis of such person or entity's status as an associate of the federal government (or on the basis of such person or entity's status as a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary of such an associate), except as expressly set out in 2 CFR 200.319(a) or as specifically authorized by the DOJ.
- J. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable requirements (including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients, or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as employees of the Subrecipient.
- K. Subrecipient must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's employment status.
- L. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance (including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that term is defined by the DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages at such conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences.
- M. Subrecipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and effectiveness of work under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act of 2010, and other applicable laws.

- N. Any training or training materials that the Subrecipient develops or delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for Grantees and Subgrantees.
- O. Subrecipient understands and agrees that the awarding agency may withhold award funds, or may impose other related requirements, if (as determined by the awarding agency) the Subrecipient does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Part 200 Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of the award), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits, investigations, or reviews of awards.
- P. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 CFR Part 42, specifically including any applicable requirements in Subpart E of 28 CFR Part 42 that relate to an equal employment opportunity program.

Subrecipient must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 CFR Part 54, which relates to nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in certain education programs.

Subrecipient must comply with all applicable requirements of 28 CFR Part 38 including any applicable requirements regarding written notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries, and rules that prohibit specific forms of discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief, a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that pertain to subrecipient organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will include section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6102). Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition set out at section 40002(b)(13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise.

Subrecipient understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements") and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality research and statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects protection).

- Q. Subrecipient may not use Federal awards to either directly or indirectly, support or oppose the enactment, repeal, modification, or adoption of any law, regulation, or policy, at any level of government (see 18 U.S.C. 1913-Lobbying with appropriated moneys). The subrecipient may not use Federal awards to pay any person to influence (or attempt to influence) a federal agency, a Member of Congress, or Congress (or an official or employee of any of them) with respect to the awarding of a federal grant or cooperative agreement, subgrant, contract, subcontract, or loan, or with respect to actions such as renewing, extending, or modifying any such award (see 31 U.S.C. 1352).
- R. Subrecipient must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes, including from various provisions in the applicable appropriations acts.
- S. Subrecipient must promptly refer to the DOJ Office of the Inspector General any credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor, or other person has, in connection with funds under this award: (1) submitted a claim that violates the False Claims Act; or (2) committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct.
- T. Subrecipient may not require any employee or contractor to sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts, or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or agency authorized to receive such information.
- U. Subrecipient must comply with, and is subject to, all applicable provisions of 41 U.S.C. 4712, including all applicable provisions that prohibit discrimination against an employee as reprisal for the employee's disclosure of information related to gross mismanagement of a federal grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a federal grant. Subrecipient also must inform its employees, in writing, of employee rights and remedies under 41 U.S.C. 4712.

- V. Pursuant to the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA), recipient may be requires to report the names and total compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of a subrecipient of award funds.
- W. The City shall monitor Subrecipient spending and specific outcomes and benefits attributable to use of award funds by Subrecipient. Subrecipient agrees to submit, upon request, documentation of its policies and procedures for monitoring of the Subaward.
- Subrecipient must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C.
 10231 and 28 C.F.R. Part 22 that are applicable to collection, use, and revelation of data or information.
- Y. Subrecipient agrees to comply with any additional requirements that may be imposed during the Subaward Period of Performance if the federal awarding agency determines that the Subrecipient is a "high-risk" grantee.
- Z. Subrecipient must comply with all confidentiality requirements of 34 U.S.C. 10231 and 28 CFR Part 22 that are applicable to the collection, use and revelation of data or information. Subrecipient agrees to submit a Privacy Certificate that is in accord with requirements of 28 CFR Part 22 and, in particular, 28 CFR 22.23.

§2.4 <u>Uniform Requirements for Federal Awards</u>

Subrecipient acknowledges that this Subaward is a "Federal award" as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.38 and that Subrecipient's use of this Subaward is subject to the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit requirements for Federal awards which are codified in 2 CFR Part 200. Subrecipient agrees that it is considered a "non-Federal entity" and a "subrecipient" as such terms are defined in 2 CFR §§200.69 and 200.93, respectively. Thus, Subrecipient hereby agrees to comply with, and be subject to, all provisions, regulations and requirements applicable to a "subrecipient" and a "non-Federal entity" as set forth in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. Further, Subrecipient agrees that the City is a "pass-through entity" as such term is defined in 2 CFR §200.74 and that the City shall have the rights and remedies of a "pass-through entity" in relation to this Subaward and Subrecipient as set forth in the Uniform Requirements. Without limitation, some of these Uniform Requirements are set forth below in this Section 2.4:

- A. Subrecipient shall disclose to the City any potential conflict of interest in connection to this Subaward and its use in accordance with 2 CFR §200.112.
- B. Subrecipient shall comply with the mandatory disclosure requirements for

- violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity as set forth in 2 CFR §200.113.
- C. Subrecipient acknowledges that the City may impose additional specific conditions to this Subaward in accordance with 2 CFR §200.207, and Subrecipient shall comply with such conditions. Subrecipient shall also submit any annual certifications and representations deemed required by the City in accordance with 2 CFR §200.208.
- D. Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements for a non-Federal entity regarding financial management and the establishment of a financial management system, all as more fully set forth in 2 CFR §200.302. Further, Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements set forth in 2 CFR §200.303, which relate to certain obligations required of Subrecipient to maintain internal controls over the use of this Subaward.
- E. In the event this Subaward requires cost sharing or matching of funds from Subrecipient, Subrecipient shall comply with the cost sharing and matching requirements set forth in 2 CFR §200.306.
- F. Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements relating to program income as more fully set forth in 2 CFR §200.307.
- G. When property (real, tangible or intangible) is, in whole or in part, improved, developed, purchased or otherwise acquired with Subaward funds, Subrecipient shall comply with the regulations set forth in 2 CFR §§200.310 through 200.316 ("Property Regulations").
 - Subrecipient agrees that it shall hold in trust all real property, equipment, and intangible property acquired, developed or improved with Subaward funds in accordance with the provisions set forth in 2 CFR §200.316.
- H. When procuring and/or contracting for property and/or services that are to be paid or reimbursed by any amount of Subaward funds, Subrecipient shall comply with all regulations applying to "non-Federal entities" as set forth in 2 CFR §§200.318 through 200.326 (the "Procurement Regulations"). These Procurement Regulations include, without limitation, provisions requiring the following:
 - 1. Documentation and use of procurement procedures in compliance with Procurement Regulations.
 - 2. Contracting oversight and maintenance of written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest.
 - 3. Compliance with federal standards regarding procurement and award of contracts, competition, and procurement methods.

- 4. Affirmative steps required to encourage contracting with small and minority businesses, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms.
- 5. Compliance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act in the procurement of recovered materials.
- 6. Requirement to perform a cost or price analysis in connection with procurements.
- 7. Bonding requirements.
- 8. Requirement to make procurement documentation available for review by the City and the Federal awarding agency.

In addition, Subrecipient must include in all of its contracts paid or reimbursed, in whole or in part, with Subaward funds, the provisions set forth in Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200 (Contract Provisions for non-Federal Entity Contracts under Federal Awards) as required by 2 CFR §200.326.

I. Subrecipient shall comply with the monitoring requirements for a non-Federal entity as set forth in 2 CFR §200.328, which requires the Subrecipient to oversee the operations of its activities supported by the Grant and monitor such activities to assure compliance with applicable Federal requirements and performance expectations are being achieved. Further, Subrecipient shall comply with the financial and performance reporting requirements for a non-Federal entity as set forth in 2 CFR §§200.327 to 200.329 and any other reporting requirements that may be promulgated by the Federal awarding agency or the City in accordance with such regulations. Such reporting requirements include, without limitation, the provision of any information required for the assessment or evaluation of any activities funded by the Subaward and the reporting of information related to real property in which the Federal government retains an interest.

Subrecipient acknowledges that the City, as a "pass-through entity," may make various findings, determinations, evaluations and reports regarding Subrecipient and its use of Subaward funds, as set forth in 2 CFR §§200.330 to 200.332. In accordance with such regulations, Subrecipient shall comply with, and timely grant to the City and its auditors, any monitoring requests, requests for on-site access to facilities, equipment and personnel, and requests for any other information as may be authorized under such regulations. Subrecipient shall also timely grant to the City and its auditors access to Subrecipient's records and financial statements as required under 2 CFR §200.331(a)(5). In addition, Subrecipient shall comply with any conditions that may be placed upon Subrecipient as part of the City's risk evaluation of Subrecipient under 2 CFR §200.331(b).

J. Subrecipient shall comply with all records retention, maintenance, storage, transmission, and collection requirements applicable to a non-Federal entity as set forth in 2 CFR §§200.333 to 200.335. Such regulations require, without limitation, that Subrecipient retain financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records of Subrecipient that are related and/or pertinent to Subrecipient's use of Subaward funds in a manner and for a duration of time as prescribed in such regulations and that Subrecipient collect, transmit and store Subaward-related information in a manner as set forth in 2 CFR §200.335.

In accordance with the provisions set forth in 2 CFR §200.336, Subrecipient hereby grants the Federal awarding agency, the Inspectors General, the Comptroller General of the United States, and the City, or any of their authorized representatives, the right of access to any documents, papers, or other records of Subrecipient which are pertinent to the Subaward, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. This right also includes timely and reasonable access to Subrecipient's personnel for the purpose of interview and discussion related to such documents. These access rights shall not be limited to any required record retention period but last as long as the records are retained, and access shall not otherwise be limited unless as specifically permitted under 2 CFR §§200.336 to 200.337. Subrecipient shall require any of its subcontractors, successors, transferees and assignees, to acknowledge and agree to comply with the provisions of this Section.

- K. Subrecipient shall comply with the cost principles for federal awards as set forth in 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E ("Cost Principles"). Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that any costs incurred by Subrecipient may only be charged to or reimbursed by Subaward funds if it is incurred in compliance with all Requirements for the Subaward and is also deemed allowable and allocable under the Subaward in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Cost Principles.
- L. By virtue of using Subaward funds, Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that it is subject to the provisions set forth in 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart F ("Audit Requirements"). Subrecipient shall comply with all provisions applicable to a non-Federal entity and an "auditee" (as defined in 2 CFR §200.6) as set forth in such Audit Requirements, including the requirement to conduct a single audit if applicable. Subrecipient understands and agrees that the Federal awarding agency may withhold Subaward funds, or may impose other related requirements, if Subrecipient does not satisfactorily and promptly address outstanding issues from audits required by the Uniform Requirements (or by the terms of this Subaward), or other outstanding issues that arise in connection with audits, investigations or reviews of DOJ awards.

M. Subrecipient shall comply with the obligations applicable to a non-Federal entity as it pertains to the closeout of this Subaward as set forth in 2 CFR §200.343. Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that it shall continue to comply with the post closeout obligations set forth in 2 CFR §200.344 after closeout of the Subaward and expiration of the Term of this Agreement.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

III. STANDARD PROVISIONS

§3.1 Independent Party

Subrecipient is acting hereunder as an independent party, and not as an agent or employee of the City. No employee of Subrecipient is, or shall be, an employee of the City by virtue of this Agreement, and Subrecipient shall so inform each employee organization and each employee who is hired or retained under this Agreement. Subrecipient shall not represent or otherwise hold out itself or any of its directors, officers, partners, employees, or agents to be an agent or employee of the City by virtue of this Agreement.

§3.2 Construction of Provisions and Titles Herein

All titles, subtitles, or headings in this Agreement have been inserted for convenience and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms or provisions hereof. The language of this Agreement shall be construed according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either party. The word "Subrecipient" herein and in any amendments hereto includes the party or parties identified in this Agreement, and may be used interchangeably with "subgrantee" and "contractor." The singular shall include the plural. If there is more than one Subrecipient as identified herein, unless expressly stated otherwise, their obligations and liabilities hereunder shall be joint and several. Use of the feminine, masculine, or neuter genders shall be deemed to include the genders not used.

§3.3 Applicable Law, Interpretation, and Enforcement

Each party's performance hereunder shall comply with all applicable laws of the United States of America, the State of California, the County and City of Los Angeles, including but not limited to, laws regarding health and safety, labor and employment, wage and hours and licensing laws which affect employees. This Agreement shall be enforced and interpreted under the laws of the State of California without regard to conflict of law principles. Subrecipient shall comply with new, amended, or revised laws, regulations, and/or procedures that apply to the performance of this Agreement.

In any action arising out of this Agreement, Subrecipient consents to personal jurisdiction, and agrees to bring all such actions, exclusively in state and federal courts located in Los Angeles County, California.

If any part, term or provision of this Agreement shall be held void, illegal, unenforceable, or in conflict with any law of a federal, state or local government having jurisdiction over this Agreement, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby.

§3.4 Integrated Agreement

This Agreement sets forth all of the rights and duties of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and replaces any and all previous agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, relating thereto. This Agreement may be amended only as provided for herein.

§3.5 Excusable Delays

In the event that performance on the part of any party hereto shall be delayed or suspended as a result of circumstances beyond the reasonable control and without the fault and negligence of said party, none of the parties shall incur any liability to the other parties as a result of such delay or suspension. Circumstances deemed to be beyond the control of the parties hereunder shall include, but not be limited to, acts of God or of the public enemy; insurrection; acts of the Federal Government or any unit of State or Local Government in either sovereign or contractual capacity; fires; floods; epidemics; quarantine restrictions; strikes, freight embargoes or delays in transportation; to the extent that they are not caused by the party's willful or negligent acts or omissions and to the extent that they are beyond the party's reasonable control.

§3.6 Breach

Except for excusable delays as described in §3.6 herein, if any party fails to perform, in whole or in part, any promise, covenant, or agreement set forth herein, or should any representation made by it be untrue, any aggrieved party may avail itself of all rights and remedies, at law or equity, in the courts of law. Said rights and remedies are cumulative of those provided for herein except that in no event shall any party recover more than once, suffer a penalty or forfeiture, or be unjustly compensated.

§3.7 <u>Prohibition Against Assignment or Delegation</u>

Subrecipient may not, unless it has first obtained the written permission of the City:

- A. Assign or otherwise alienate any of its rights hereunder, including the right to payment; or
- B. Delegate, subcontract, or otherwise transfer any of its duties hereunder.

§3.8 Indemnification

Each of the parties to this Agreement is a public entity. In contemplation of the provisions of Section 895.2 of the Government Code of the State of California imposing certain tort liability jointly upon public entities, solely by reason of such

entities being parties to an Agreement as defined by Section 895 of said Code, the parties hereto, as between themselves, pursuant to the authorization contained in Sections 895.4 and 895.6 of said Code, will each assume the full liability imposed upon it or upon any of its officers, agents, or employees by law, for injury caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement, to the same extent that such liability would be imposed in the absence of Section 895.2 of said Code. To achieve the above-stated purpose, each party indemnifies and holds harmless the other party solely by virtue of said Section 895.2. The provision of Section 2778 of the California Civil Code is made a part hereto as if fully set forth herein. Subrecipient certifies that it has adequate self-insured retention of funds to meet any obligation arising from this Agreement.

- A. Pursuant to Government Code Sections 895.4 and 895.6, the parties shall each assume the full liability imposed upon it, or any of its officers, agents or employees, by law for injury caused by any negligent or wrongful act or omission occurring in the performance of this Agreement.
- B. Each party indemnifies and holds harmless the other party for any loss, costs, or expenses that may be imposed upon such other party by virtue of Government Code section 895.2, which imposes joint civil liability upon public entities solely by reason of such entities being parties to an agreement, as defined by Government Code section 895.
- C. In the event of third-party loss caused by negligence, wrongful act or omission by both Parties, each party shall bear financial responsibility in proportion to its percentage of fault as may be mutually agreed or judicially determined. The provisions of Civil Code Section 2778 regarding interpretation of indemnity agreements are hereby incorporated.

§3.9 Subcontractor Assurances

Subrecipient shall contractually obligate all of its contractors, subcontractors and vendors funded by Subaward funds as may be required to ensure that Subrecipient can comply with all of the Requirements and other provisions of this Agreement.

§3.10 Remedies for Noncompliance

Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that, in the event Subrecipient fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement or with any Requirements referenced in Section 2.1 above, the Federal awarding agency or the City shall have the right to take one or more of the actions set forth in 2 CFR §200.338. Such actions may include, without limitation, the withholding of cash payments, suspension and/or termination of the Subaward, and the disallowing of certain costs incurred under the Subaward. Any costs incurred by Subrecipient during a

suspension or after termination of the Subaward shall not be considered allowable under the Subaward unless allowed under 2 CFR §200.342. Subrecipient shall be liable to the Federal awarding agency and the City for any Subaward funds the Federal awarding agency determines that Subrecipient used in violation of any Requirements reference in Section 2.1 above, and Subrecipient shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any sums the Federal awarding agency determines Subrecipient used in violation of such Requirements.

Subrecipient shall be granted the opportunity to object to and challenge the taking of any remedial action by the Federal awarding agency or the City in accordance with the provisions set forth in 2 CFR §200.341.

§3.11 Termination

Subrecipient acknowledges and agrees that the Subaward, and any obligation to disburse to or reimburse Subrecipient in connection thereto, may be terminated in whole or in part by the Federal awarding agency or the City as set forth in 2 CFR §200.339. Subrecipient shall have the right to terminate the Subaward only as set forth in 2 CFR §200.339. In the event the Subaward is terminated, all obligations and requirements of this Agreement and the Grant shall survive and continue in full force and effect in connection with any portion of the Subaward remaining prior to such termination, including, without limitation, the closeout and post closeout requirements set forth in this Agreement.

§3.12 Amendments

Any change in the terms of this Agreement, including the performance period of the Subaward and any increase or decrease in the amount of the Subaward, which are agreed to by the City and Subrecipient shall be incorporated into this Agreement by a written amendment properly executed and signed by the person(s) authorized to bind the parties thereto.

§3.13 Complete Agreement

This Agreement sets forth all of the rights and duties of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and replaces any and all previous agreements or understandings, whether written or oral, relating thereto. This Agreement may be amended only as provided for herein and neither verbal agreement nor conversation with any officer or employee of either party shall affect or modify any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, and by the parties in separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. The parties further agree that facsimile signatures or scanned signatures (or signatures in another electronic format designated by City) and sent

by e-mail shall be deemed original signatures.

This Agreement includes twenty-two (22) pages and eight Exhibits which constitute the entire understanding and agreement of the parties.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Subrecipient have caused this Subaward Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives.

APPROVED AS TO FORM: HYDEE FELDSTEIN SOTO, CITY ATTORNEY	FOR THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES KAREN BASS, MAYOR
ByBarak Vaughn, Deputy City Attorney	By signing below, the signatory attests that they have no personal, financial, beneficial, or familial interest in this contract.
Date	By Karen Bass, Mayor
ATTEST: HOLLY L. WOLCOTT, CITY CLERK	
By	Date
Date	
APPROVED AS TO FORM: DAWYN R. HARRISON, COUNTY COUNSEL	FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, a political subdivision of the State of California
By Deputy County Counsel Date	By Nathan J. Hochman District Attorney Los Angeles County District Attorney's Office
	By Guillermo Viera Rosa Chief Probation Officer Los Angeles County Probation Department
	Date
City Business License Number: Internal Revenue Service ID Number: Council File/OARS File Number: <u>22-1106;</u> Date of the Contract Number:	

EXHIBIT A

Supporting Youth-Centered Programming and Advocacy on the Care First Community Investment Committee

Recently, the Los Angeles County (County) Board of Supervisors (Board) reaffirmed its commitment to care first principles by ensuring that the Care First Community Investment (CFCI) Advisory Committee remain central to all administrative funding processes related to CFCI funds, both allocated and unspent. CFCI continues to represent the will of the voters to equitably distribute locally generated funds to communities and individuals experiencing racial and social inequities.

When the Board established the CFCI Advisory Committee (Measure J Advisory Committee), it prioritized the creation of a body that reflected the County, and the important streams of work focused on improving the quality of life for those most in need. Along with designating County departments, community representatives were selected to ensure their voices were central to the development of funding recommendations. Youth were not directly included in the membership. As such, there is limited representation of the unique interests of young people across the County.

	<u>MOTION</u>
SOLIS	
MITCHELL	
HORVATH	
HAHN	
BARGER	

The original membership of 15 CFCI Advisory Committee members was increased to 23 with the renaming of the advisory committee from Measure J to Care First Community Investment. The expanded committee reemphasized the Board's intent to ensure strong community voices and involvement in the funding recommendations by also including two youth members. However, the effectiveness of the current structure of youth representation on the Advisory Committee has been challenged by the meeting time requirements coupled with the lack of flexibility to accommodate the barriers young people experience to participation in this type of body, despite the County's attempts to increase involvement by offering compensation for members for their time and participation.

On July 1, 2022, the Board established the Department of Youth Development (DYD) to support the development of young people in Los Angeles County by coordinating and building capacity for a wide range of youth development services, opportunities, support, and other care-first efforts with a goal of equitably reducing youth justice system involvement. DYD did not exist when the Board last revisited the makeup of the CFCI Advisory Committee's members. Over the last three years, DYD has established infrastructure and demonstrated success in coordinating a continuum of youth services and advancing authentic youth engagement, reflecting the strengths, needs, and lived experience of the County's most vulnerable young people. While DYD has received CFCI funding and provided youth development expertise, DYD's ability to represent the unique interests of young people is limited by its not being a voting member of the CFCI Advisory Committee. Given the community and County's commitment to youth development and justice, and the explicit reference to youth in the Measure J ballot

measure, adding DYD to the CFCI Advisory Committee will continue the Board's vision of "Youth Justice Reimagined" and deepen the County's "Care First" infrastructure to support our most vulnerable youth.

I, THEREFORE MOVE that the Board of Supervisors:

- Amend and expand the Care First Community Investment Committee to include the Director of the Department of Youth Development, or their designee.
- Direct the Director of the Department of Youth Development, or their designee, to
 consult with and support the current youth representatives on the Care First
 Community Investment Committee to strengthen their ability to substantively
 participate in the work of the committee.

#

LH:SE/NW